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Dear Shareholders,

| present to our shareholders the annual report of Softpower
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019
decreased by 1.3% to HK$531.4 million (2018: HK$538.2 million).
The gross profit margin was approximately 24.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 27.4%). The profit attributable
to equity holders was HK$6.8 million for the year under review
(2018: HK$26.0 million), representing a decrease of approximately
73.9% over last year. Basic earnings per share was HKO0.51 cent
(2018: HK1.95 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year 2019 remained a challenging year for the Group. As we
faced headwinds during the year, the Group’s revenue decreased
by 1.3% to HK$531.4 million and recorded the net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company HK$6.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

As mentioned in our 2019 interim report, the Group's
performance was buffeted by a number of factors. During the
year under review, our sales recorded a slight decrease as some
large existing orders were fulfilled in 2018. In addition, there was
a lack of large infrastructure projects in Hong Kong during the
year. As a result, our sales did not gain growth momentum and
returned to a normal level.

Due to the environmental protection policies in China, the
temporary production halt in the PRC factories disrupted the
normal supply in the fourth quarter of last year. The PRC factories
grappled to comply with stringent environmental measures
implemented by the PRC government. This increased our costs
and impacted our gross profit margin. The unfavourable market
conditions in Hong Kong slowed down the construction progress
and the demand for our products.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

FUTURE PROSPECTS

To stay in the forefront of competition, we will continue to
manage our costs tightly and enhance our cost-effectiveness. The
Group's financial position remains strong. The Group will continue
to be prudent in light of the challenges in both the local and
global markets.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) in the mainland
China has a profound impact on the region’s economies. While
the extent of the full impact remains to be seen, 2020 is expected
to be full of challenges. In light of the strong support from Hong
Kong Government on the supply of more public housing, the
Group will continue to benefit from the increasing demand on
pipes and fittings products. Therefore, the Group is optimistic
with the prospects of pipes and fittings business in Hong Kong
and Macau. We are confident that our committed management
team can bring the Group forward under a difficult operating
environment.

APPRECIATION

In closing, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
deepest thanks to our shareholders, customers, suppliers and
banks for their continuous support. | would also like to thank
our Directors, management team and employees for their
commendable efforts and valuable contribution to the Group over
the years. Your dedicated support is the driving force behind our
achievements.

Lai Fulin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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The business of the Group was commenced in 1949 as a pipe’s
retail shop. Now the Group has developed into a sizeable
company and become a listed company in the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 21 December 2000. We
root in Hong Kong 70 years and are the mainstay of the industry.

The principal business of the Group is the importing and selling
of a comprehensive range of pipes, fittings and other related
accessories of different materials, applications and brand names in
Hong Kong by Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee"). Sales
of the Group’s products are conducted either by wholesale or
retail sale. We offered quality goods storage and logistic services
for local main contractors and landlords. Throughout the years,
the Group has supplied quality piping materials to many landmark
projects in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

The mission of the Group is to provide high quality products to
the customers and serve with value-added and excellent customer
services.

In attaining the above, we provide “one-stop-shop”platform that
provides high quality and a variety of pipes and fittings that readily
available to our customers in ways that meet their needs and
exceed their expectations.

Whenever you think pipes and fittings, think Bun Kee.

Mission and Strategy
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

The Group is a leading provider to the construction sector offering
a wide range of pipe (including copper tube, ductile iron and
steel pipes) related products, fittings, comprehensive services
and solutions to the contractors, designers, consultants and
government agencies in Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group's core business mainly operated with our flagship
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited, a well-established
company with a long history. Starting from a small retail shop,
we grew up to a company listed in Hong Kong. We have become
one-stop supplier of a comprehensive range of pipes and fittings.
The Group has built a good reputation for the pipes and fittings
business in Hong Kong and Macau. We have established stable
major customer and supplier bases over the years.

During the year, we continued to operate in a competitive market
environment. The Group remained focused on its core business
of distribution of pipes and fittings in Hong Kong and Macau.
The new segment of biomass pellet fuel products business was
relatively small and did not have profit contribution to the Group.

The Group recorded revenue of HK$531.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$538.2 million), a slight
decrease of 1.3%. The Group's revenue was mainly derived from
sales of pipes and fittings in Hong Kong and Macau. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the lack of large-scale infrastructure
projects in Hong Kong during the year but partially offset by the
increase of sales in Macau which recorded an increase of 72.3%
as compared to the corresponding period of last year. The profit
attributable to equity holders was HK$6.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$26.0 million), representing
a decrease of 73.9%. Competition on pricing for new sales orders
has eroded our gross margins and resulted in the decrease of
profit for the Group.

For the year under review, other net gains were about HK$0.6
million (2018: HK$4.3 million), representing a decrease of 86.0%.
The decrease was primarily attributable to the one-off reversal of
provision for customer claim in 2018.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s selling and distribution costs amounted to
approximately HK$20.5 million in 2019 (2018: HK$20.8 million),
a decrease of about 1.6% year-on-year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in transportation costs, consultancy
fees and sales commission, partially offset by the increase in
logistic staff costs. The Group’s general and administrative
expenses amounted to approximately HK$106.0 million in 2019
(2018: HK$113.0 million), representing a decrease of about 6.3%
year-on-year. The decrease was mainly due to the initial adoption
of HKFRS 16 “Lease”. Most of the rental expenses incurred in
2019 were recognised as depreciation on right-of-use assets and
interest expenses on lease liabilities presented in finance costs.
After taking out this effect, the decrease was primarily attributable
to the decrease in employee benefits expenses and testing fees,
partially offset by the increase in depreciation expenses.

Finance costs mainly consist of the interest expenses on bank
borrowings and lease liabilities. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the finance costs were HK$8.5 million (2018: HK$2.1
million). The increase was mainly attributable to interest expense
on lease liabilities of HK$6.1 million resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 16 during the year. Excluding the effect of HKFRS 16
adoption, the interest expenses was HK$2.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$2.1 million), representing an
increase of 9.5% over last year. Finance income, mainly interest
income from a loan to a related party, which was at similar level
as compared to last year. As finance income outpaced costs, we
recorded net finance income of HK$1.9 million (2018: HK$8.1
million).

OUTLOOK

To stay in the forefront of competition, we will continue to
manage our costs tightly and enhance our cost-effectiveness. The
Group's financial position remains strong. The Group will continue
to be prudent in light of the challenges in both the local and
global markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) in the mainland
China has a profound impact on the region’s economies. While
the extent of the full impact remains to be seen, 2020 is expected
to be full of challenges. In light of the strong support from Hong
Kong Government on the supply of more public housing, the
Group will continue to benefit from the increasing demand on
pipes and fittings products. Therefore, the Group is optimistic
with the prospects of pipes and fittings business in Hong Kong
and Macau. We are confident that our committed management
team can bring the Group forward under a difficult operating
environment.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2019, the cash and bank balances of the
Group were approximately HK$193.7 million (2018: HK$161.1
million) including pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$36.0 million (2018: HK$31.0 million). Basically the Group’s
working capital requirement has been financed by its internal
resources. The funds generated from operations and the available
banking facilities will enable the Group to meet its future working
capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities for trade finance of approximately HK$290.7 million
(2018: HK$265.7 million), approximately HK$51.7 million (2018:
HK$62.8 million) was utilised. The Group's total borrowings stood
at approximately HK$47.4 million (2018: HK$57.4 million), the
entire amount of borrowings for both years end will mature within
one year.

The entire amount of borrowings outstanding as at 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$47.4 million (2018: HK$57.4 million).
35% (2018: 20%) and 65% (2018: 80%) of borrowings were
subject to floating and fixed rates respectively.

The gearing ratio as measured by total bank borrowings to total
equity was approximately 8.7% as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
10.6%).

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the entire amount of the
Group's borrowings was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in Hong Kong
dollar, Macau Pataca, Renminbi and United States dollar. In order
to manage foreign exchange risk, the Group has been closely
monitoring its foreign currency exposure and will arrange for any
hedging facilities if necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, certain bank deposits and certificate of
deposit held by subsidiaries of the Group with aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$36.0 million (2018: HK$31.0
million) and HK$10.0 million (2018: HK$10.0 million) respectively
were pledged to banks for banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2018 and 2019.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no capital commitments
contracted for but not provided for in consolidated financial
statements. (2018: Nil).

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 169
employees (2018: 186). Total employee benefit expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately HK$67.1
million (2018: HK$72.3 million).

Remuneration policy is reviewed annually and certain staff
members are entitled to sales commission. In addition to the basic
salaries and contributions to the mandatory provident fund, the
Group also pays discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme to the employees in Hong
Kong. The Group contributes to an employee pension scheme
established by the PRC Government which undertakes to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group in Mainland China. The Group adopted a
share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to motivate the eligible directors and employees of the
Group in recognition of their contributions to the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREBAEZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 54, acted as an Executive Director of the
Company from October 2009 to May 2017 and continued to sit
on the senior management team of the Group thereafter. Mr.
Lai rejoined the Board as an Executive Director of the Company
on 27 November 2017 and was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board with effect from 30 March 2018. He is also a member
of the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. Lai
is the Head of Production & Purchasing of the Group and holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lai has
over 20 years of experience in the banking sector, investment
management and general management of companies in China.
Mr. Lai worked in the Bank of China in Shenzhen from 1986 to
2001. From 1995 to 2001, he was the deputy general manager
of a subsidiary of Bank of China dealing with businesses in the
securities industry. During the period from 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai
was the general manager of FYITEFERE HEHEEZEBR AT
(Shenzhen Huaao Guanli Technologies Company Limited*). Mr.
Lai holds a certificate of graduation in Chinese Language from %
IZRE 28T (Shenzhen Institute of Education*).

Mr. Lai is the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

*  For identification purpose only

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 55 was appointed as Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in May 2009.
Mr. Yu is responsible for managing overall daily operations of
the Group and the implementation of the Group’s development
strategies.

Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in investment
management, investment banking and general management of
listed companies. Mr. Yu began his career at Mackenzie Financial
Corporation in Toronto, Canada as an investment analyst in 1989
and since then, he has served several major financial corporations
including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche Bank and CITIC Capital. In
addition to his vast investment banking and management
experience, Mr. Yu has also managed listed companies such
as New World Cyberbase Limited and Asia Logistics Holdings
Limited in Hong Kong. During his past career, Mr. Yu has focused
on direct investment and mergers and acquisitions activities in
sectors including construction materials, infrastructure, energy,
technologies, media and financial services.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in English Literature from
the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a Master of arts degree in
Education from the University of Toronto and a master’s degree
in business administration from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada.

Mr. Yu is a director of King Jade Holdings Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company which has an interest in the shares of
the Company that is required to be disclosed under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 52, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2009. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of Australia
CPA and Australian Institute of Banking and Finance. He holds a
master of commerce degree, specializing in banking and finance
from the University of New South Wales. With more than 20
years of experience in PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst and
Young, Mr. Wong specializes in the area of auditing banks and
listed companies. Mr. Wong is the chief financial officer of China
Animation Characters Company Limited (Stock code: 1566, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
“"HKSE"”) and serving as independent non-executive director of
Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 231,
a company listed on HKSE) and PT International Development
Corporation Limited (Stock code: 372, a company listed on HKSE).

Mr. Chen Wei Wen, aged 51, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2010. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen holds
a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from Monash University,
Australia. Mr. Chen worked as a general manager of Guangzhou
Futian Trading Company Ltd (EMTEFRE SHERAA]) from
1997 to 2005. Since November 2004, Mr. Chen was appointed as
chief operating officer of Guangzhou Kanxin Polymer Technology
Co., Ltd (BMMELED FEHEERZAE]) which is an affiliated
company of Guangzhou Futian Trading Company Ltd (EMT=E
NE 5B AF]). Mr. Chen was also appointed as director and
general manager of Fuda Enterprises Limited (B MmZETEER A
7]) since February 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREBAEZERE

Mr. Guan Zhigiang, aged 57, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2016.
He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee, a
member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Guan holds a bachelor of Agronomy from
Huazhong Agricultural University and a master degree in business
administration from Southwestern University of Finance. During
the period from 1984 to 1996, Mr. Guan had successively worked
in the Ministry of Agriculture of the People’s Republic of China
and the State Planning Commission. He subsequently joined
the Agricultural Development Bank of China and held various
senior management positions and was granted a qualification of
senior economist from the bank. From February 2002 to March
2003, Mr. Guan served as the general manager in New China
Life Insurance Company Ltd, Jinan branch. From March 2003
to November 2005, he worked in Yeland Group Co. Ltd. (now
known as HNA Investment Group Co., Ltd), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and was appointed as the chairman
of its group’s real estate company. Since 2005, Mr. Guan has
established an investment advisory firm and invested in a number
of enterprises which engaged in various fields including mining,
energy and biotechnology, etc., and acted as a director in those
enterprises. Mr. Guan is currently the vice chairman of ¥/ T H{%
HE YR B R AR (Zhejiang Ecopro Biotech Company, Ltd.*) and
a director of ERRITBER LR LEZEBR AT (Huoerguosi
Poly Entertainment Culture Industry Co., Ltd*). He has extensive
experience in finance, investment and corporate management.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wai Koon, Timothy, aged 50, was appointed as
Chief Operating Officer of the Company in January 2015. Mr.
Chow is responsible for directing, administering and co-ordinating
the operational activities of the Group. He is also responsible for
recommending and developing strategies, goals and policies of
the Group.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chow devoted almost 20 years
to Hewlett-Packard group (“HP"”), a leading global IT provider of
products, technologies, software, solutions and services. While at
HP, Mr. Chow held several senior positions in sales, marketing,
business planning and finance in the Asia Pacific region including
China, Australia and Singapore.

Mr. Chow has extensive experience in sales and marketing in
the Asia Pacific region, particularly China, across consumer,
commercial and enterprise customers. In addition, Mr. Chow
has robust knowledge of end-to-end systems from research
and development, manufacturing and distribution to channel,
communication and customer support.

Mr. Chow holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the Macquarie Graduate School of Management, Australia,
and a Bachelor’s Degree of Accountancy from the Nanyang
Technological University, Singapore.

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan, aged 50, joined the Company as the
Financial Controller in December 2012 and has been appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company in February 2013.
Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Cheng held various finance positions at a number of companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and has over
25 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEBZERE

Ms. Chan Yuk Fan, aged 56, joined the Group in 1982 and has
held a number of leadership roles in the Group’s retail, project
sales and procurement division. Ms. Chan currently is the Deputy
Managing Director of Bun Kee (International) Limited, the pipe
trading subsidiary of the Group and is mainly responsible for
the leadership, control and long-term business development of
the Company. She has extensive experience and knowledge in
managing a successful piping distribution operation. She is a
member of Central and Western District Fight Crime Committee,
a member of Lions Club and a council member of The Hong Kong
Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Association Limited.

Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 62, joined the Group in 1979 and is
the Warehouse Director of the pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee
(International) Limited. Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse
and transportation activities of the Group. He has over 40 years
of experience in supervising warehouse and transportation
operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in Store Supervision from a
technical institute.

Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 54, joined the Group in 1993 and is the
Sales Director of the pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International)
Limited. Mr. Ku is responsible for the Group’s sales operations,
new product development and promotion activities including the
exhibitions and seminars. He has over 33 years of experience in
sales and marketing activities.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT
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Corporate Governance Report

Softpower International Limited (the “Company”) is committed
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance. The board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
maintain and enhance the policies and practices of the Company
on a timely, transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate governance. The
Company believes that good corporate governance is not only in
the interest of shareholders and investors but also in the interest
of the Company. The Company will continue to raise the standard
to formalize the best practice of corporate governance as far as
we could.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code") as stated in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rule (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry with the directors of the Company (“Directors”), all
Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive Directors, Mr. Lai Fulin (the Chairman
of the Board) and Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (the Chief Executive
Officer); and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Mr. Guan
Zhigiang, one of whom namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
has appropriate professional accounting experience and expertise.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" of this Annual Report.

Throughout the year, the Board has at least one-third in number
of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
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EERHRE

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract with
the Company and appointed for a term of one year. All Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they are
independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except that Mr. Lai Fulin is
the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

The Board has balance of skills, knowledge and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business and to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The Board
membership is covered by professionally qualified and widely
experienced personnel to bring in valuable contributions and
different professional advices and consultancy for development of
the Company. All Directors have separate and independent access
to the advice and services of the senior management and the
company secretary with a view to ensuring the board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. The principal
functions of the Board are to supervise the management of the
business and affairs; to approve the strategic plans, investment
and funding decision; to review the Group's financial performance
and operating initiatives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for formulating
overall strategy and polices, monitoring and controlling the
performance of the Group. In addition to its overall supervisory
role, the Board also retains specific responsibilities such as
approving financial accounts, approving annual budget,
recommending dividend payments, approving policies relating to
the Board’s compliance, etc. whilst managing the Group’s day-
to-day operations is the responsibility of the management of
the Group (the “Management”) such as implementing internal
control, business strategies and plans set by the Board, etc..
When the Board delegates certain aspects of its management and
administration functions to the Management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of the Management.
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Corporate Governance Report

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations.

In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on
the Company'’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or reading materials on
the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors EEHE

Mr. Lai Fulin FETRBA LA

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng BEERE

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson BUGESEE

Mr. Chen Wei Wen BRIESC KA

Mr. Guan Zhigiang EERESE
Notes: Bfat -

C: Corporate Governance C: ¥ES

F: Finance and Accounting F: B REE

L: Listing Rules Updates L: EWRAIEES
R: Other Relevant Regulatory Updates R: HubiERERAE R
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The position of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate individuals. The role
of the Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive
Officer. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and accountability.

Mr. Lai Fulin takes up the role of providing leadership for the
Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges
its responsibility properly. With the support of executive Directors
and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings
and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
The Chairman also ensures that good corporate governance
practice is in force from time to time, and all key issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
is responsible for managing overall daily operations of the Group,
the implementation of the Group’s development strategies and
plans and to perform other responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
additional meetings are convened when deemed necessary by
the Board. Board members are provided with complete, adequate
and timely information to allow the Directors to fulfill their duties
properly. In addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. In addition, the Chairman and
non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) meet at least once every year without the presence of
executive Directors.

During the year, the Board met regularly and held seven meetings.
Notices and board papers were given to all Directors prior to the
board meetings in accordance with the Code. The Chairman and
non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) met once without the presence of executive Directors.
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Meetings held in 2019

Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

R-ZB-NFETHNER

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Board BENEEN _T-NFOFIRESEEEH -
committee meetings and general meetings (including the annual EZEE L8R MRFARE (BRERR
general meeting) respectively held in 2019 are set out as below: BFRE)MHFELEFBAOT -
Attended/Eligible to attend
HERY/ RERERRY
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
3 EVEREE REZEE FHzEe
= 23 =E =E BRRAE
Number of Meetings Held SRETRY 7 3 1 3 2
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Lai Fulin Rt n - 171 33 22
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng MRERE 777 - - - 22
Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHITEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson ~ EUAME%4E 17 33 = = 22
Mr. Chen Wei Wen R EE n 33 171 33 22
Mr. Guan Zhigiang EEREAE 777 33 11 33 22
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TEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES

A number of Board committee, including audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee, have
been established by the Board to strengthen its functions and
to enhance its expertise. All committees have been formed with
specific written terms of reference which deals clearly with the
respective committees’ authorities and duties.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three members including one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lai Fulin and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Mr. Guan Zhigiang. It is chaired
by Mr. Guan Zhigiang.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments (including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment); and

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors.

The remuneration package of executive Directors is determined
by reference to their duties and responsibilities, experience and
the prevailing market conditions. The remuneration package of
individual executive Directors includes salary, discretionary bonus
and share-based payment. Details of the Directors’ fee and other
emoluments of the Directors of the Company are set out in Note
32 to the financial statements.
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The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,
and make recommendations to the Board. The Board will have
final authority to approve the recommendations made by the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during 2019,
the following major matters were reviewed and discussed in the
meetings and recommended to the Board for approval:

e To review the remuneration policy and remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management of the Company;

e To consider the bonus arrangement of the Directors and
senior management of the Company; and

e To review the new service contracts entered into between
the Company and non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the details
remuneration of the senior management of the Company by band
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was set out in Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members including an executive Director, Mr. Lai
Fulin, and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chen
Wei Wen and Mr. Guan Zhigiang. It is chaired by Mr. Lai Fulin, the
Chairman of the Board.

In August 2013, the Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy.
Such policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on Board.
With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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In December 2018, the Company adopted the Nomination Policy.
According to the policy, the Nomination Committee (“NC")
will consider candidates recommended by shareholders in the
same manner as candidates recommended to the NC from other
sources. In its evaluation of director candidates, including the
members of the Board eligible for re-election, the NC will consider
(1) The current size and composition of the Board and the needs
of the Board and the respective committees of the Board; (2)
Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service; and (3) Other factors that
the NC may consider appropriate.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@) To review the structure, size and composition (board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board;

(c) To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
disclose the Board Diversity Policy or its summary in the
corporate governance report of the Company including
the measurable objectives set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and progress made towards achieving these
measurable objectives;

(d) To review the policy for the nomination of Directors
("Nomination Policy”) as appropriate. The Nomination Policy
shall set out, inter alia, the nomination procedures and
process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship;
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(e) To assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(f)  To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting during 2019, the
following major issues were reviewed and discussed in the
meeting:

° To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

e To review the Board Diversity Policy;

e To make recommendation to the Board for approval the
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee;
and

e To evaluate and make recommendation as to the
qualification and experience of the directors who were
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the 2019
annual general meeting.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Mr. Guan Zhigiang. It is
chaired by Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson who has the appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting and financial management
expertise.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

(b) To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them;
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(c) To review the Company'’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems; and

(d) To discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during 2019 and the
following major matters were reviewed and discussed in the
meetings:

e To review the annual results of 2018 and the interim results
of 2019 and making recommendation to the Board for
approval;

e To make recommendation on the reappointment of the
auditor;

e To review the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programme and related
budget;

e To review the risk management and internal control systems;

e To approve the auditor’s fees for audit of 2019 financial
statements; and

e To discuss the audit service plan of 2019.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board adopted the written terms of reference on corporate
governance functions in March 2012 so as to assist the Board
performing corporate governance functions. The terms of
reference of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions are summarized as follows:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and its
disclosure requirements in Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company'’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuing
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code,
and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board
in discharge of its corporate governance functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on the
scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the remuneration to the auditor of the Company
in respect of audit services was HK$1,020,000 and fees related
to taxation services and other non-audit services amount to
HK$99,500 and HK$80,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The senior
management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Company.

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Company. The responsibilities of the auditor
of the Company with respect to the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 54
to 62.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
risk management and internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The systems of risk management
and internal control are designed to facilitate effective and
efficient operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure the quality
of internal and external reporting and compliance control and risk
management functions. It is also designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that material misstatement or loss
can be avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in
operation systems.

The Group has set up a risk management system to provide
directions in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks and is reviewed at least on an annual basis. The senior
management of the Group identifies risks that would adversely
affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses
and prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of standard
criteria.

The Board has engaged an independent professional advisor
to perform ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
internal control review to assess the effectiveness of the financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on
a rotation basis.

Risk management report and internal control report are submitted
to the Audit Committee at least once a year. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, had performed annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management system and internal
control system, including the scope on risk management and
internal control systems, result of internal audit work and status of
compliance control.
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At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 24 March 2020,
the independent professional advisor reported their review work
for the year ended 31 December 2019 performed in accordance
with the detailed risk-based internal control review plan which
was approved by the Audit Committee and the risk management
report was also circulated to the Audit Committee for review. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system
and internal control system for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Audit Committee members, together with the senior
management, have also reviewed, considered and discussed
the risk management system, all findings relating to the internal
control system and recommendations for improvement. The Board
considers the risk management system and internal control system
of the Group were effective and adequate during the year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan,
who is also the Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Cheng
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He fulfills the requirement under
Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is responsible for providing secretarial
services to the Board and ensuring the operation of the Company
is properly complied with Hong Kong listed companies’ regulatory
requirements as well as enhancing its corporate governance
standards. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Company Secretary is also the secretary of each of Board
committees. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of all Board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors at all times.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Right to convene special general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, the shareholder(s) of
the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may request the Board to convene a
special general meeting. The requisition must state the purposes
of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company and its head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong for the
attention of Company Secretary and may consist of several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.
If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this Annual Report
for the attention of Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79(1) and 79(2) of the Bermuda Companies
Act, on the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
members of the Company representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the members having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or (i) not less than one hundred members,
the Company shall, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

(@) to give to members of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting;
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(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall
be deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution
or circulating any necessary statement, at the registered office of
the Company and its head office and principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i)  arequisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with
the necessary procedures.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective and fair
communication with the shareholders and the investors of the
Company. Latest information is conveyed to the Shareholders and
the investors of the Company on a timely basis. A Shareholder
Communication Policy (the “Policy”) was adopted by the
Company in March 2012. The Policy aims to set out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the latest information of
the Company is conveyed to the Shareholders and investors on
a timely basis. The Company uses a range of communication
tools to ensure the Shareholders and the investors are kept well
informed of key business imperatives.
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Disclosure of Information

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investors mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim
report and annual report), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making
available all the disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) and its
corporate communications and other corporate publications on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

General Meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or
to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their
behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. Shareholders’
views on matters that affect the Company are welcome by the
Board at shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders of the Company
are notified of shareholders’ meetings through notices and reports
or circulars sent to them. Each item of special business in the
notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an
explanation for the proposed resolution. A separate resolution
is proposed by the chairman of the meetings in respect of each
separate issue, including the re-election of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or failing him/her, his/ner duly appointed delegate, are
available at the annual general meeting to answer questions with
regard to the work of these committees.

Voting by Poll

Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote
at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural
matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of
the poll are explained to the shareholders at the commencement
of each general meeting, and questions from shareholders
regarding the voting procedures are answered. The poll results are
posted on the respective websites of the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on the same day of the poll.
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Corporate Governance Report

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website (www.softpower.hk) where
information and updates on the list of directors and their roles
and functions, constitutional documents, terms of reference of
the Board committees, procedures for shareholders to propose
a person for election as a director, announcements, circulars
and reports, etc. released to the HKExnews' website (www.
hkexnews.hk) and other information are posted. Information on
the Company’s website will be updated from time to time. A
dedicated email address (ir@softpower.hk) for investor enquiry is
set out in the “Contact Us” section on the Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 63.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2019.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In accordance with the relevant provision of the Bye-Laws of
the Company: 1. The Company in general meeting may declare
dividends in any currency but no dividends shall exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. 2. The Board may subject to
Bye-Laws from time to time pay to the shareholders such interim
dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the position
of the Company. 3. The Board may also pay half-yearly or at
other suitable intervals to be settled by it any dividend which may
be payable at a fixed rate if the Board is of the opinion that the
profits justify the payment. 4. No dividend shall be declared or
paid and no distribution of contributed surplus made otherwise
than in accordance with the Statutes. No dividend shall be paid
otherwise than out of profits available for distribution. 5. The
Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or scrip.

The Company’s ability to distribute dividends will depend on,
among others, the operating results, cash flow, financial condition
and capital requirements of the Group and the interests of
the shareholders of the Company. The Company’s distribution
of dividends shall also comply with any restrictions under the
Bermuda Companies Act and the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

The details of financial risk management of the Group are set out
in Note 3 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the section
headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of this Annual Report.

The compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group is set out in this “Report of
Directors” and the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this Annual Report.

Social Responsibilities and Services and Environmental
policies

The Group is committed in promoting the sustainable
development of both the environment and the society.

We believe it is more blessed to give than to receive. As such, we
support and encourage our employees to participate in community
service activities. With the support from the management team,
our core business company, Bun Kee (International) Limited
("Bun Kee") is committed to participate and support social
services activities. In this regard, Bun Kee has awarded the
Caring Company logo in recognition of our corporate social
responsibility’s participation and commitment. We also believe
in the ripple effect which those people, whom we helped, will in
turn help others who are in need.

With regards to environmental policy, we pay a great deal
of attention to promoting environmental protection. We will
integrate environmental awareness in our daily operations
including:

e Reduce electricity consumption, improve energy efficiency,
use of energy-efficient products to replace the appliances
and equipment;

e Turn off lightings, air-conditioners and electrical appliances in
offices after working hours, or when rooms not being used,
for instance, the conference rooms;
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Use electronic means for communications internally and with
external parties;

Reduce the need to copy and print. Use of recycled
paper, copy and print on both sides of the paper, where
appropriate; and

Re-use of office supplies (such as single-sided paper, paper
clips, envelopes, file folders, paper bags, plastic bags).

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group understands and supports that employees, customers,
suppliers and business partners, investors and shareholders are
vital to our sustainable and stable development.

()

(i)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Employees

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. Our employee
handbook outlines terms and conditions of employment,
code of conduct and employee benefits. We promote
harmony and respect in our workplace. Employees are one
of our most important assets. To that end, we provide self-
improvement and advancement opportunities as well as a
safe workplace in order to retain high calibre employees. The
Group values the well-being and health of our employees
and therefore provides medical insurance coverage and
benefits to our employees. In addition, we will organize staff
gathering quarterly and annual dinner, all management will
also participate to maintain good relations with employees
and promote two-way communication. The Company
will conduct staff appraisal annually, and also provide
exit interviews for the outgoing employees. We adopt an
open policy to allow employees at any time, by email or in
person to the department managers or Human Resources
department to express their views.

Customers

We provide high quality products to our customers constantly
as it is the best way to retain customers and business growth.
Our sales team will visit customers regularly to keep abreast
of new opportunities and challenges. All opinions received
will be prompt handled by the relevant team. We grow up
together with most of our customers in past years and we
have established solid and long-term relationships with them.
We also have built up a trust and good reputation among
our customers over the years.
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(iii)

(iv)

Suppliers and business partners

For our suppliers and business partners, we strive to maintain
a stable and long-term relationship with them. The Group's
procurement is based on our stringent suppliers’ selection
criteria. To ensure the highest quality of products, the Group
has requested the suppliers to provide product certification.
In addition, we engaged highly reputable independent
laboratories for quality testing to ensure that the products
comply with local and international standards. Our sales
team and procurement team will have regular visit to our
suppliers’ factories for inspection. In order to allow our
customers to have direct feedback channel to the suppliers,
we will also organize some factory tours to the customers.
This can let them better understanding of the production
flow and products quality affirmation in order to win the
utmost confidence of customers.

Investors and shareholders

For the investors and shareholders, we maintain a high
level of transparency and communicate with them through
meetings, announcements and circulars. The Company
maintains a website, the information will be updated from
time to time. In addition, a dedicated email address is set out
in the “Contact Us” section of the Company’s website for
investor and general public inquiry.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$99.3 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 23 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Bermuda Companies Act, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2019 are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Fulin (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Mr. Guan Zhigiang

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei Wen will retire
from office by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that
all of them are independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has
entered in to any service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates has an
interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group engaged.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme approved by the shareholders of the
Company on 24 June 2004 (the “2004 Scheme") which expired
on 23 June 2014. Thereafter, no further options will be granted
under the 2004 Scheme but the subsisting options granted
thereunder prior to the expiry date will continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the terms of the 2004 Scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May
2015, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “2015 Scheme"”) under which the
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible persons
to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2015 Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years from the date of its adoption.
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1. The 2004 Scheme

The details of 2004 Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the 2004 Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive and/
or rewarding the participants.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

(0

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The Board may offer to grant options to the participants
which means (i) any Director (including any executive
director, non-executive director or independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group; (ii)
any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any
member of the Group; (iii) any consultant, adviser,
supplier, customer or sub-contractor of the Group; and
(iv) any other person whatsoever from time to time
determined by the Board as having contributed to the
development, growth or benefit of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the general meeting of the Company approving the
Scheme. The number of shares may be refreshed by
the approval of the shareholders and the refreshed limit
of the number of shares must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as the date of the
approval of the refreshed limit. The maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue upon
exercise of all options were granted under the Scheme
are 1,000,000 Shares, representing approximately
0.075% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of this report.
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(d)

(e)

(/)

(9)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised or outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise specified in
the relevant offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by the
grantee to the Company on acceptance of the option
within 28 days from the date of grant of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
participants and shall be at least the highest of (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) daily quotation sheet on the date on which
the options are deemed to be granted and accepted
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (the
“Commencement Date”), which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding
the Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.
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(h) Life of the Scheme (h) FrEIZEMH
Subject to earlier termination by the Company at BRARBRRRAG FHHRESS
general meeting or by the Board, the life of the Scheme RPN - B2 BB —F
commenced from 24 June 2004, date of adoption, and TOFERNAZTHA (FRHNEE) B
ended on 23 June 2014. EZE-NERAZT=HBRL-
Details of options granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled REEA - RIEFTEIRE - 1768 -
and outstanding under the Scheme during the year KK RS R ARITR R 2
(the information of exercise price, number and share IR (BETRE B RKRNE
price of the Company is disclosed on the basis of the BERTIRBR G & 0t ERERE
information after the Share Consolidation became KPREs) T -
effective) are as follows:
Movement during the year
ERgs
Held as at Held as at
Exercise 1 January 31 December
Price 2019 Granted and 2019
S RZE-NE accepted RIE-NE
Name of Directors Date of grant i -A-H ERHE Exercised Lapsed Cancelled +=A=1-H
EEig RLAH ¥-7 b2} i 3 BT BAH Bt L]
Lai Fulin e 7 3/12/2009 0N 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - -
ERR
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson 7 31212009 0 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - -
BIEAE
Chen Wi Wen 7 5552010 083 1000000 - - - — 1000000
Rl
7,000,000 - - (6,000,000) - 1,000,000
Employees A& 749 311212009 0 9,000,000 - - (9,000,000) - -
g
16,000,000 . (15000000 1,000,000
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Notes: Bt -
1. The options granted to these grantees are vested in stages and be 1. BTZEARANBRESSBRERESE - I
exercised in the following manner: R THFRITRE
Maximum percentage of options exercisable Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options
AT EREERE DT T BRI B Dt 2 AR
20% 3/6/2010 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2011 - 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2012 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2013 - 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2014 — 2/12/2019
2. The options granted to these grantees are vested in stages and be 2. PEIREEEANEREESBREE I
exercised in the following manner: AT A RATIE
Maximum percentage of options exercisable Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options
AT ERESRRE DT T BRARE AR B D th 2 AR
20% 5/11/2010 — 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2012 — 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020
3. Vesting of options granted to certain employees is subject to 3. BRTYETEEZERERERGNBIZESA
achievement of profit target. BETEHES -
Details of the fair value of options granted under the Scheme FRABZE-_T-NFE+-_A=1T—HILFE
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and the accounting ﬁiﬁiaﬁiwﬁﬂj%Hx%ﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁx%
policy adopted for the options are set out in Note 23 and Note 2 VEETBOR B D B SR SRR M 5123
to the financial statements respectively. RBIEE2 ©
2. The 2015 Scheme 2. —E-AFHE
The details of 2015 Scheme are as follows: BE-_ZT—RAFEFBEOT
(a) Purpose (a) B#9
The purpose of the 2015 Scheme is to recognize —E-NFFEEEREREER
and acknowledge the contributions or potential HEHAREECED K IED S
contributions made or to be made by the participants BRSVETER - BE2EENR
to the Group, to motivate the participants to optimize ERBARESUE AR EB FHiET)
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the o WHEBS RS EAHE RS
Group, and to maintain or attract business relationship MR HERBNRSEEEFR
with the participants whose contributions are or may be AEEHER -

beneficial to the growth of the Group.
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(b) Participants

(9]

The Board may offer to grant options to the participants
which means (i) any director (including any executive
director, non-executive director or independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group;
(i) any employee (whether in full time or part-time
employment) of any member of the Group; (iii) any
consultant, adviser, supplier, customer or subcontractor
of the Group, and (iv) any other person whatsoever
from time to time determined by the Board as having
contributed to the development, growth or benefit of
the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the general meeting of the Company approving the
Scheme. The number of shares may be refreshed by
the approval of the shareholders and the refreshed limit
of the number of shares must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as the date of the
approval of the refreshed limit. The maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 133,327,000 Shares, representing 10% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of this report.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised or outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of grant.

BHEBRAERDE

(b) ZEEZE

(9]

(d)

EXeAR2EERLBRE -
S28ETREO)AREEAKE 21E
MES(BREMNITES - 3FH
TEFLBIUIFNTES) : (A
SEERKE ZEREER (TREB
2REGEER) 5 (IAKETAE
B BAA - HER  BRFINE
B RVHEFEEEREAR
B %R BRIMSIELERZ
EREMAL -

Riga BT RRITZRIGEE

RITEREE I LA R RIER EAL
BRERET S TR 2 A RBRE
AT 2B B8 AR
BARRARRERERARE LHEFEIE
HEBTRMNAEN0% - IHEE
AT AR AL T - MR R 2 Ak
DB E LRNSHBIBHLEE # LR
ZAHIARRREBITRALZ10% °
RITERIRET 8 AR BEREA
BRAEIIEREMBARITEZE
BrEma T z2RDEE - &K
TREBTREBITRNERZ
30% °

RIBFTE AT HBETHORMDEE X
133,327,0000% * (5 QAR AER
EHENBEETIRA10% °

Rig BN 2REZRERIR
#

RER+ @A BE - BITEERT
B2mEE EREBFERTE
SR ARITR 2 BB AR AE) T 39T e f§
B THUREE ZRNER - T
BEBENBHREEITRNES
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(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise specified in
the relevant offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by the
grantee to the Company on acceptance of the option
within 28 days from the date of grant of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
participants and shall be at least the highest of (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) daily quotation sheet on the date on which
the options are deemed to be granted and accepted
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (the
“Commencement Date”), which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding
the Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.

Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company at
general meeting or by the Board, the life of the Scheme
commenced from 21 May 2015, the date of adoption,
and ended on 20 May 2025.

As at 31 December 2019, no share option was granted
by the Company under the 2015 Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company
are separately disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above.

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were set out
below:

Long positions in the shares and underlying share of
the Company

Name of Director Capacity
ESER at
Yu Ben Ansheng Beneficial owner/Interest of controlled
fRE corporation

EafE A/ REtEEER
Note:

These shares are held by King Jade Holdings Limited, which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to
be interested in such shares under the SFO.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

Personal
Interests

B ARz

3,000,000

EERKRS - AEROHES2E

mRKR

BEEMRARRBREAERN X EE
A&l —EiR BT

E-NF+_A=t—8 ARAE=E
IKTTEKA,\E’\ZS’& Al B EAREOEE
(B REFLARGED([EHLAGED)
SEXVED) WA - HEMRGD REEET - #
BABLERARRARERES RPEHRIFE
3521z Bz % (B AR

BEAARIESETESFRHINELESTA
(MEESPRID AR RRIREBE B2
ﬁéﬁm}aﬁﬂ"l—-

RAEXTRG RAEBRG 2FR

Approximate
percentage of
Corporate shares in issue
Interests Total  HEETRH
EBER &t CEIER
146,000,000 149,000,000 11.18%

(Notelfit)

Hat -

ZZ WP HKing Jade Holdings Limited$$H « 32
AIBAIRESRE (RRRZHBITESHRERENTE)
2EERER - AUt BEIEHFRBEKRG - &
THEWRBNZEROPHEE R -



Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME" above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive or their respective associates had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
following persons or corporations, other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the
Company

Report of the Directors
EEERE

B EX R — 8B RERT 8l FTREE SN

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—0  BEESRH
ReTBABRBEEB ZBBEALRAR

sk EAE AR A (E 3% 2B % R
BIZEXVED) PO - AR BIE B -
BB AN AR AR IEE 5 R 25
3524 E 2 BEM 2 ERLAE - RER
T A8 7 A 7 R B A
SR -

FERR

RZB-NF+ZA=+—H UTAL=s
EE(EXFREZ AR RIESFHRSHITHRA
BERINRAR B BB A BERL
RARRREZ 7 L MEGRAIFEIZ6HFE
ZERMERIOARIT

RAERXBDRGREBRD 2HFE

Approximate

Number of shares/ percentage

underlying shares held of shares in issue

Name of shareholders Capacity R 1EB 81T

REEH 514 ARG A ROBAE DL

Singapore Zhongxin Investment Beneficial owner 437,234,620 32.79%
Company Limited ®ete 171) EnEEA

Li Juan (ote2) Interest of spouse 437,234,620 32.79%

g W) [ Eh e

Qu Zhi Beneficial owner 333,317,500 25%
fhE BHEEBA

King Jade Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 146,000,000 10.95%

(Note 3/7%3)

EDBEEA
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Notes:

1. Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, the former executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is
deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

2. Ms. LiJuan, the spouse of Mr. Lai Guanglin, is also deemed to be
interested in Mr. Lai’s interest in the Company under the SFO.

3. King Jade Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company
had not been notified by any persons or corporations, other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$83,644.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company has not issued any share during the year ended 31
December 2019.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Company has not issued any debenture during the year ended
31 December 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group, or existed during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group throughout the year.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the disclosure of related party transactions set out in Note
30 to the financial statements, no Director or an entity connected
with Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between any members of
the Group and the Company’s controlling shareholders subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

From 1 January 2019 to 31 March 2019, the Group paid
consultancy fee to Mr. Lai for a fixed sum of HK$248,000 per
month as agreed by both parties. This is a connected transaction
which is exempted under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

From 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Group paid
consultancy fee to a company owned by Mr. Lai for a fixed sum
of HK$248,000 per month as agreed by both parties. This is a
connected transaction which is exempted under Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

As mentioned in the announcement dated 11 May 2016 and the
circular dated 15 July 2016 of the Company, on 11 May 2016,
Mao Xing Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Lender”), entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with China Victory International Holdings Limited,
("CVIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agria Corporation,
pursuant to which the Lender has conditionally agreed to grant
to CVIL a loan facility in the amount of up to US$10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$77,746,000) upon and subject to
the terms and conditions set out therein.

As at the date of the Loan Agreement, Mr. Lai Guanglin, a
director and the controlling shareholder of the Company (Mr. Lai
resigned as director on 30 March 2018) and is also the controlling
shareholder of Agria Corporation. As such, CVIL is therefore a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Loan
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The loan carried interest at 10.5% per annum and is repayable
by 31 July 2019. The loan is secured by the entire issued shares
of CVIL executed by Agria Group Limited (“AGL"), the immediate
holding company of CVIL, and also guaranteed by a deed of
corporate guarantee executed by Agria Corporation in favour of
the Group.
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Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general meeting on
23 February 2018, the Group agreed to novate and AGL, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Agria Corporation and the immediate holding
company of CVIL, agreed to assume the Group’s loan to CVIL
of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,357,000) with all other
terms and conditions remained unchanged.

On 9 May 2019, the Group entered into a loan agreement (“2019
Loan Agreement”) with AGL to renew the loan and the proposed
annual caps from 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2022.

The annual caps of the maximum principal loan outstanding
for the financial years ended/ending 31 December 2019, 31
December 2020, 31 December 2021 and period ending 31 July
2022 were US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,500,000) for
each year/period.

The annual caps of the interest amounts for the financial
years ended/ending 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020,
31 December 2021 and period ending 31 July 2022 were
Us$441,000, US$1,053,000, US$1,050,000 and US$610,000
respectively (“Annual Caps”). The 2019 Loan Agreement, Annual
Caps of the principal loan outstanding and interest amounts were
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Company’s
special general meeting on 24 June 2019.

Under the 2019 Loan Agreement, the clause of the share
mortgage executed by AGL, being the sole shareholder of CVIL,
over the entire issued shares of CVIL in favour of the Group has
been removed. Save as the above amendments, all other terms of
the 2019 Loan Agreement remain unchanged and continue in full
force and effect.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the interest income from
AGL amounted to approximately US$1,050,000, (equivalent
to HK$8,254,000) (2018: US$1,050,000 (equivalent to
HK$8,252,000)).

As at 31 December 2019, the loan to AGL amounted to
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,229,000) (31 December
2018: US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,540,000)).
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transaction and confirmed
that (i) the entering into of the Loan Agreement, although is not
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, is in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as
a whole; and (ii) the terms of the loan agreement and the Annual
Caps are on normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the above mentioned continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above and in Note 30 to the financial
statements, during the year, there were no connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply
with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:
Purchases

—  thelargest supplier 27.54%

—  five largest suppliers combined 62.83%

Sales

—  the largest customer 5.20%

—  five largest customers combined 20.11%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance with corporate governance code of
the Company are set out in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei
Wen and Mr. Guan Zhigiang.

By reference to "A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the audit committee were prepared and
adopted by the Board of the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit committee of
the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float required under the Listing
Rules as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Lai Fulin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E

_
pwec

To the Shareholders of Softpower International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Softpower International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 63 to 159, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Net realisable value of inventories
o Impairment of trade receivables
o Impairment of loan to a related company

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matter
BERETEE

Net realisable value of inventories
Refer to notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, inventories of
the Group amounted to approximately
HK$192 million. As described in the Basis of
preparation and accounting policies in note
2(h) to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Management applied judgment in
determining the appropriate provisions
for slow moving, obsolete inventories and
inventories with net realisable value below
cost. Net realisable value is determined based
upon a detailed analysis of the aging of
inventories on a product-by-product basis,
and with reference to their latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. An
impairment provision of approximately
HK$16 million has been recorded to reduce
the carrying value of certain inventories to
their estimated net realisable value.

We focused on this area due to the size of
the balances and the judgment involved
by management in determining the net
realisable value of the inventories.
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How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

BANFT O EERRETNSER

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on net
realisable value of inventories included:

—  We understood and evaluated the appropriateness and
consistency of the basis management used in estimating the
level of provision for inventories by comparing the historical
accuracy of inventory provisioning, on a sample basis, to the
realised amount; and reviewing the level of inventory write-offs
during the year.

—  Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventory aging
used by management to estimate the appropriate provision for
slow moving and obsolete inventories.

—  Performed audit analytics on inventory holding and movement
data to identify products with indication of slow moving or
obsolescence.

—  Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of inventories
to their net realisable value through a detailed review of sale
subsequent to the year end. Where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective products after the year end, we
challenged management as to the realisable value of the
products, corroborating explanations with the aging, sales
orders, historical margins and marketability of the respective
inventories, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to assessment on net realisable value of
inventories to be supportable by available evidence.
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Key audit matter
FARETSER

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to notes 4 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held
gross trade receivables of approximately
HK$121 million with no provision for loss
allowance. Recoverability is assessed and
provision is made for lifetime expected
credit losses on trade receivables.

Management applied judgement in
determining the appropriate loss allowance
on trade receivables. Trade receivables
relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection
are assessed individually for provision for
loss allowance. Expected credit losses are
estimated by grouping the remaining trade
receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into
account the nature of the customers, their
geographical locations and their ageing
categories, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying
amounts of the trade receivables. The
expected credit loss rates are determined
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience with an adjustment to reflect
current and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

We focused on this area due to the size
of the balances and the judgment and
estimates involved by management in
determining the expected credit loss
allowance of the trade receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

BANFT O REERERETNSEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
provision for loss allowance on trade receivables included:

We understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample
basis, management’s key control over the assessment on
recoverability of trade receivable balances and the related loss
allowance, including periodic review on trade receivables aging,
historical loss rates and approval of provision made.

Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade receivables
aging used by management to estimate the appropriate
provision for loss allowance.

Obtained management’s assessment on the expected credit loss
allowance of trade receivables and assessed the reasonableness
of the expected loss rates. We corroborated and validated
management’s assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern, correspondence with the customers, and evidence
from external sources including the relevant public search
results relating to the financial circumstances of the relevant
customers.

We assessed management’s assessment of current market
condition and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors by comparing the data used by
management against publicly available information.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of management's
calculation for loss allowance of trade receivables.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgement
and estimates made by management in relation to assessment on
provision for loss allowance on trade receivables to be supportable
by available evidence.
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Key audit matter

FRETSEH

Impairment of loan to a related company
Refer to notes 4, 19 and 30(d) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held a
loan to a related company of approximately
HK$78 million.

Management applied judgement in
determining the appropriate loss allowance
for impairment of loan to the related
company. The loan is secured by corporate
guaranteed by the holding company of the
borrower (the “Guarantor”). The loan is
interest bearing and repayable by July 2022
as detailed in note 30(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management reviewed the financial
conditions of the related company and
the Guarantor, taking into account the
settlement history of the related interest
elements, and concluded that no loss
allowance is required for such loan as at 31
December 2019.

We focused on this area due to the size of
the balance and the judgment involved by
management in determining the recoverable
amount of the loan.
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How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

BANFT O EERRETNSER

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
on the loan receivable included:

—  We reviewed the loan agreement and obtained direct
confirmation from the related company on the balance and
terms of the loan as at 31 December 2019 with no exception.

—  Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of interest payment
received and whether they are in accordance with the terms of
the loan.

—  We challenged management as to the recoverability of the
loan, corroborating explanations with the latest financial
information of the related company and the Guarantor and
correspondence with the relevant parties.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to the impairment assessment on loan to
the related company to be supportable by available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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BB E

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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BYZEERE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other gains, net
Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses
Reversal of impairment

of financial assets

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income, net

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-A=1T—HLFE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T-N\F

Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kt FET FET
5 531,371 538,155
7 (402,120) (390,671)
129,251 147,484

6 644 4,267
7 (20,512) (20,844)
7 (105,952) (113,018)
7 571 3,523
4,002 21,412

9 10,343 10,111
9 (8,471) (2,051)
9 1,872 8,060
5,874 29,472
10 (1,444) (4,621)
4,430 24,851

6,790 26,015
(2,360) (1,164)

4,430 24,851

HK cent HK cents

B JEN

11 0.51 1.95

The notes on pages 70 to 159 are an integral part of these FI0ENS9B C T R FLREMB®RE 2
Py

consolidated financial statements.

B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £

63



64

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mETHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+-A=+—HIFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial gain/(loss) on
post-employment benefit
obligations, net of tax
Item that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

AEERF

Hith 2 E e

HERGT @ EFERE i 7

XERZEH
BER R R A B EE
ezt (B518)
HRRIIRIR
B & A RE B E AR E it 7
R ZER
ERME

AFEFEHM S
R IAE

AEFEENEEE

PEWSAERER -

ARAREEFHEA
TR AR

The notes on pages 70 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BHEBRAERDE

Paray
ES
54
=

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Biat FET FET
4,430 24,851
24 636 (110)
(468) (1,156)
168 (1,266)
4,598 23,585
7,001 24,744
(2,403) (1,159)
4,598 23,585
70R159B Z T Al SHERAFHRERZ
B2 o



ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use-assets

Intangible assets

Loan to a related company
Rental deposits and other assets

Current assets

Inventories

Loan to a related company

Trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Pledged certificate of deposit

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Note
Kt
BE
ERBEE
VI - RE K& 13
FREEE 14
| EE 15
BT —fEEAT 19
HEReREMEE 19
RBEE
FE 18
BT —MEEAq 19
Z 5 ERERIAE 19
e BENRK
H Y ERIE 19
BAREBEABRZ
TREE 20
B dEE
BIRIRT AR 21
BIRIRERITIERK 21
Re MIRTT4E 22
WEE
R
BHEEA
& A 23
(=] 24
IS HE
iR

e PR R

As at 31 December 2019
RZZE-—NF+_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TETT
17,676 21,377
135,480 =
477 =
78,229 =
6,957 7,337
238,819 28,714
191,526 235,309
= 78,540
121,007 114,747
34,156 39,741
2,722 2,601
3,457 2,111
10,000 10,000
36,000 31,000
157,683 130,117
556,551 644,166
795,370 672,880
26,665 26,665
517,156 510,150
543,821 536,815
2,215 4,618
546,036 541,433

The notes on pages 70 to 159 are an integral part of these EI0ORI198 v M R EFEMBRK 2
#

B -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE M EIRR R

As at 31 December 2019
RZE-NAF+ZA=+—H

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade payables, other payables and
contract liabilities

Taxation payable

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The financial statements on pages 63 to 159 were approved by
the board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and were signed on its

&

ERBEn
EIERER R
IR BE

RBRE

B RMNFOR - EMENRER
ARARE

FETHIR

HERR

fBE

waeE

HESREE

REBEEFE

REERRBAE

Note
k3

14
26

27

14
25

2019 2018
—B-hEF —ET-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
117,340 =
1,816 1,352
1,865 2,862
121,021 4,214
58,756 69,227
818 562
21,355 =
47,384 57,444
128,313 127,233
249,334 131,447
795,370 672,880
428,238 516,933
667,057 545,647

FEEI3RI1S9BEMIBBRREBEFEN_Z
TEFEZA -+ EE IRREFEH

Yu Ben Ansheng 81 &4

Director&&8 %
7021598 2 M AL FiRE
IS o

behalf: E:
Lai Fulin 38188
Director® %
The notes on pages 70 to 159 are an integral part of these £
consolidated financial statements. &
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-A=1+—HLFE

Attrbutable to equity holders of the Company
RATREREARETR

Share-
based Non-
Share Share  Copital  Merger  Statutory Other  Exchange  payment  Retained  controlling
aptal premiumresee reeve  Tesene feSeVefesene feseneeamings o interests Total
Wk
BERN

BE o BREE KRR oRER  ITER  AMBR EiRR  NRER  REEN AEREE 2R
WSO HSO00 HKSOWD AKSODD HKSUD AKSODD RSO0 AKSODD RSO0 HKSOWD . AKSO
TRt TET TET AT TR TEn TET TR TEr TET  TE

At 1 lanuary 2018 RT-NE-A-B 6665 16618 UNS 370 4105 LB 5% 31330 - S
Proft or he year RERT = - - - - - - S B05 (064 M8

Other comprehensie income: Ap2ENE
Actuarialloss o post-employment - BB 45T ERktEE

beneft obligations, netof tax BB MBER - = = = = (10 S S S = (10
Curency trandation differences ~ EBHEEE - - - - - - (1) = = 5 (11%)
Totel comprehensive income TERRAhRAE
for the year - - - - - (10) (1,161) - 26,015 (1159) 23585
Transactons with owners BEEALRS:
Share-bsed payment WRABERHAR - - - = = = = 9 S S 9
Transer upon lapse of share options - TR TR E X%
- - - - - - N - -
Acquistion of asubsidary WE-HHBLT - - - - - = = s - s s
At31 December 2018 RE-N&
tZA=t-8 2,605 126618 315 3,700 U 1,09% (53) 435% 340300 4618 54143
The notes on pages 70 to 159 are an integral part of these FI0EN9B 2T AU FLREMBREZ
consolidated financial statements. BESERD o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERRBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NAF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KiEREREARERS
Share-
based Non-
Share Share  Capital ~ Merger Statutory ~ Other Exchange  payment  Retained controlling
apital  premium  reserve  reseve  fesee  reseve  reseve  reserve  eamings  interests  Total
Wit
RERN
B&  REEE E4RE  GHER  tERE  RHEE  EXRE  NRBRE  REEN FBRER L
HKS000  HKS00D  HKSO00  HKSU00  HKSUO0  HKSUO0  KKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSUD  HKSORD  HKSUAD
fér  TEr  FEr  FEn fEn TEr T FEn fER TR
At 1 January 2019 RIT-NE-A-B 26665 16658 415 3700 u 0% (58) 436 30300 4618 54143
Proft forthe year KEREH - - - - - - - - 60 (360 4430
Other the comprehensive ncome: ~~ Ef 2 :
Actuaril gain on postemployment - BB 4R IERHEE
beneft obligation, net of tax W - R - - - - - 636 - - - - 636
Curency transation differences EhhEEE - - - - - - (425) - - ) (468)
Total comprehensive income TERRANAAE
for the year - - - - - 636 (425) - 6,790 (2403) 4598
Transactions with owners ERRAIRA:
Share-bsed payment R BERM - - - - - - - 5 - - 5
Transfer upon apse of share options~ REEFRTE R - - - - - - - () 4om - -
At31 December 2019 R-E-0E
+2A=1-A 26,665 126,618 34115 3,700 U 1731 (483) 39 351102 2215 546,036
The notes on pages 70 to 159 are an integral part of these E70E 1598 Y M AN EEAMEREY

consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Payment for acquisition of intangible assets
Dividend income from financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Purchase of pledged certificate of deposit

(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 IR TER (&) R
Redemption of pledged certificate of deposit & iz F B K& E -

Principal elements of lease payments
Decrease in amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

The notes on pages 70 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-A=1T—HLFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\&E
Note HK$000 HK$'000
ira FHET FET
RETH o HETE
REEBELEZRS 29 67,523 14,053
BEATFE (8,519) (2,045)
BUHE 10,221 10,053
B FTEH (2,191) (9,656)
REEFHEERSFH
,,,,,,,,,, R 12405
REZH HETE
BAYE - BEMRE (2,820) (10,617)
HEWME - BE KRB

FTiS30a 29 80 136
WE—RH B DA 33 = (10,655)
BEEWEE (341) =
BARBEFABRZ

SREEZBBIA 108 105
REZBFAREFHE @9y (21,031
MEZH o HESRE
RAEE 307,224 374,785
BEEE (317,284) (387,818)
BABBBEHRE = (9,971)

(5,000) 6,000
10,000
REBHMEENK (22,522) =
R L — i1 FE 428 AR AR BR R T Ak
1,512 =
MEESMARSFE (36,070) (7,004)
BehBeSEYEN,/

OR) 588 27,991 (15,630)
fE 5 =28 (425) (824)
FOzBReRREEEY

2 130,117 146,571
FRZBEREEEEY
22 157,683 130,117

70E1598 2 M Bt FRAMBIHRERZ
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General information

Softpower International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in trading of construction materials, mainly pipes and fittings.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Victoria Place,
5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020.

Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

The Group has applied the following standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations for the first time for the
annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendments, Curtailment
or Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long term interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HK (IFRIC) 23

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle

The Group has applied for the first time the above new
standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
issued by the HKICPA that are mandatorily effective from 1
January 2019. Save as disclosed below, the adoption of other
new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
do not have a material impact on the Group’s results of
operations or financial position.

Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16

This note discloses the new accounting policies of HKFRS
16 Leases that have been applied from 1 January 2019 and
explains the impact of the adoption on the Group'’s financial
statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019
which resulted in changes in accounting policies. The Group
has applied the simplified transition approach and has
not restated comparative amounts for the 2018 reporting
period. Right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount
of the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid
or accrued lease expenses). The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019.

A

PR R R M EE

mAEEN EFTEER @)

AEEER-F-NAF—A—Rzxkzi
B 20 B9 B B 2 B R ER A T 51BN ~ (&

T2 BRAIRRIE:

BEAVBHREER HE
F165%

BRVBREER ETEERRHTE
FE9% (IBETA) (NE-N

BBGEHER] FTEHERT ~ HaRisk
195 (BRI AN) BE

B GETER BEPEREED
FE285 (IBFTA) XREER

BE (BB B®RE RSB IEEN
RELZEE BRI
REFE23

BBV HREERN —ZT—AFE
(BFTA) —E—+FRH

ZEBIMERE

AR [ B

AEBEBIRWIA LRBEB IR
gEMAER T NF—A—R=®H
HEREYFRT R AERTHOER R kg o
SR T EATIEES - AR IR E
A - BRI 2R R BERENEE X
BB HRRLEEATE

RNBERMBRELERNF 1657 KE

A FEHRES T NF—A—BK
BT BRE BB MEEANF 165
ME - WERERAE A KB HHRAR

S, 480
=

AEEEB T NF— A BERN
EEMBREEF 165 - WEHEF
BRH N - AEBECRAGICBES
EAWAREN T NFREHEOLL
BHT o HAREESNRA R R
EaEMSE (REEMBEMNSKEE
ERXETHR)GE - Fitt - AFHE
ERAMELEZEHN N BELABRR -F
—NE-A-BNMVEERBERTE

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

(Continued)

Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16
(Continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases” under the principles of HKAS
17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019.

(i) Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

e the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

e reliance on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous;

e the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining term of less than 12 months as at 1
January 2019 as short-term leases; and

e the use of hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS17 and HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MR

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @
(Continued)
Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 RSB BREERE1655 R
(Continued) RN A (E)
(i) Measurement of lease liabilities (i) HEEEWIE
HK$000
FET
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE-N\F+_A=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 WENKEHEAE 188,607
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing £ AT AR &)X FEFA B HiK)
rate at the date of initial application G ERR R AR 160,684
Less: short-term leases and low-value leases W REREERRBFE
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense EHHERMEEEHEE (2,374)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—-BERN
HERE 158,310
Of which are: HpaiE -
Current lease liabilities mEHEaE 21,735
Non-current lease liabilities EREHEAR 136,575
158,310
(iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets (iii) EFAREEERN &

The associated right-of-use assets were related to
property leases and measured at the amount equal
to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2018.

(iv) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1
January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following
items in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

. Right-of-use assets — increase by HK$158,310,000

e |ease liabilities — increase by HK$158,310,000

HEANERREEREYXTHEEESMH
B RENHEERBNSREE
YiRE-F-N\F+-A=1+—H
ERABEERBRTERNEZE
SR EMRNS EEESR
TAHE -

(iv) R=F—-AF-HA-—HELERR

X P EZH

BRBRNESHU T NF—H
—HEERBERTHUTRBEESE

B4R .
%

e EHBEZEE - M
158,310,000/ 7T

e FHEHE—3EN158,310,000
BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @
(Continued)
Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 RANE B BREERE1655FHE
(Continued) RN A (E)
(iv) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 (iv R=ZE—NF—HA—HELEERE

January 2019 (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and
e  restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of buildings
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective standards and amendments
to standards

The Group has not early adopted any other new standards
and amendments to standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective. The Group is assessing the impact of these
new standards and amendments to standards.

The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2020 and have not been
early adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

Conceptual Framework Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting for Financial Reporting’
2018

1 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

3 effective date to be determined

e MR R MR

mAEEN EFTEER @)

EEAEERERZERNRIERT 2

A g

AEEWERFRNEACEMERE
RH)EAFT AT 2E R R RT AR © RS [E
ST ERIRERT 2 ERINZE

[
rE°

NTAEEREE-E-T45—A—8
B4 0 B B EE FE R A BT R I A SR 3R
RIRMNFEED - BT RARR
o

BB MEER RBREL?
F175%

BB REER EBNEER
FE3WUBRTA)

BB HREER REEFHEHEBRE
FIORLEAGET IEEREL
AERIZE 285k MWEELS
CRHES) T A

BEBETEREIRE EANTR
MEBEETER
EXTACCHEN)

—E-N\F% B SRS S
WM SIESR HEZRMEET

1 RZZ-ZTF—A— B2 BFRBNF
[E HARI A R

2 RIE-—F—F A ZERIGBNE
FEHAR A2

3 AWMAHBEEET
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in
the acquire on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquire that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interest’s proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @
(Continued)

(a) #ERE @

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interest are also
recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Consolidation (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
of the Company that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
revaluation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

e MR R MR

2. WBEERSTHBER@®

(0 Hg]E

(i)

(i)

HEER 25K

AEBEEERNMBHRERA
MIEE  ORAZERLE
EBZEERBREMER
MER(THEER]E -
HAPBRERABTZY
BIARAIZHERZ2IE
M o

XEREEH

SINERXFRXFAHBARE
M EmEEERAZERY
BMAREEE  REEZRS
RHRBEFRZERBHEIA
SNESIEZEREENRAR
PEE & 2 SME W st B 1R
FIAM R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £

79



80

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

—  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

— income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @
(Continued)

(o NSBRE @

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies (Continued)
Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising, leasehold
improvements, plant and machinery, equipment,
furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
expenses are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Plant, machinery and 3-10 years
equipment
Leasehold improvements 5 years or the lease

period, if shorter

Office furniture, fixtures 3-5 years
and fittings

Office equipment 3-5 years

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 3-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘Other gains, net’ in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)
(e) RMIBARIZKRERKFEME

(e) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(i.e. CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(f) Financial assets

()

(i)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit or
loss), and

—  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)
) eREE®B
ziii) F1E

(f) Financial assets (Continued)

(iiij) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

—  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

(Continued)

(f) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(f) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in
the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @
(Continued)
(g) Leases (9) HE

88

As explained in Note 2 above, the Group has changed
its accounting policy for leases where the group is the
lessee. The new policy is described and the impact of
the change in Note 2.

Until 2018 financial year, lease of properties were
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating lease (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

()

()

Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (“FIFO") method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within the
credit period and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(k)

)

(m)

(n)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of
reporting period.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Employee leaves

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be
settled within twelve months and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.

(iii) Pension obligations

Following the adoption of the Mandatory
Provident Fund ("MPF"”) Scheme in December
2000, all employees of the Group employed in
Hong Kong joined the MPF Scheme. Under this
scheme, employees and the Group are required
to make contributions to the scheme calculated
at 5% of the individual employee’s monthly
basic salaries, subject to a cap of HK$1,500. The
Group's contributions to this scheme are expensed
when they are due. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group’s employees in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are covered by various
government sponsored pension plans. These
government agencies are responsible for the
pension liabilities to these employees. The relevant
group companies pay monthly contributions to
these pension plans based on certain percentages
of the salaries, subject to a certain ceiling.

The employees employed by the operations in
Macau are members of the government-managed
retirement benefits schemes operated by the
Macau government. The Macau operations are
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes operated by
the Macau government is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

Under these plans, the Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to make further payments
once the required contributions have been paid.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)
(o) EEERN &
(iv) URGRERZT5

(o) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Share-based payment

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees as considerations
for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

e including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a
specified period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-market
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

()

(i)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position
date in the places where the Company and its
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement of financial
position date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(q) Provisions

(r)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Revenue recognition
(i) Sale of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of pipes and fittings and
biomass pellet fuel products. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customer has full discretion over
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate provision for
returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

(®)

(u)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Sale of goods — wholesale (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the products
are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Deposits collected from the customers before
product delivery are recognised as contract
liabilities.

(i) Sale of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores selling
pipes and fittings products. Revenue from the
sale of goods is recognised when a group entity
sells a product to the customer. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately when the
customer purchases the product and takes delivery
in store.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Intangible assets
Trademark

Separately acquired trademark is shown at historical
cost. Trademark has a finite useful life and is carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of trademark over their estimated useful life of 10
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

3.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit and counterparty risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s financial risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance by actively managing
debt level and cash flow in order to maintain a strong
financial position and minimising refinancing and
liquidity risks by attaining healthy debt repayment
capacity, appropriate maturity profile and availability of
banking facilities.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong
and in Macau with minor operations in the
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD"), Macau Pataca
("MOP") and Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities, which are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency
of the group entities. In order to mitigate
the foreign currency risk, the Group has
been closely monitoring its foreign currency
exposure and requirements and will arrange
for any hedging facilities if necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As HK$ is pegged against USD and MOP is
pegged against HK$, the Group is exposed
to limited exchange rate fluctuation. As a
result, the exchange rate risk exposure in
respect of USD and MOP are not significant.
While for RMB, the exchange rate fluctuation
is relatively volatile. At 31 December 2019,
if RMB had strengthened/weakened by
5% (2018: 5%) against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been HK$173,000 higher/lower (2018:
post-tax profit of HK$244,000 higher/lower)
respectively mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB-
denominated financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group's interest-
bearing assets mainly include loan to a related
company and bank balances and deposits,
details of which have been disclosed in Notes
19, 21 and 22. The Group's exposure to
changes in interest rates is also attributable
to its borrowings, details of which have
been disclosed in Note 25. Borrowings carry
at floating rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk whereas those carry
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. As at 31 December 2019,
approximately 35% (2018: 20%) of the
Group's borrowings were carried at floating
rates and expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. The Group has not used
any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure
against cash flow interest-rate risks.

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rate
has increased/decreased by 25 basis points
with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 would have been HK$34,000 lower/
higher (2018: post-tax profit of HK$23,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of increase/
decrease in interest expense on borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk

(@)

Risk management

Credit risk mainly arises from bank deposits,
trade and other receivables, other deposits
and loan to a related company. The carrying
amounts of these balances substantially
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit and counterparty risk in relation to
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019 all the
bank deposits are deposited in high quality
financial institutions without significant credit
risk. The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because 57% (2018: 59%) of the Group’s
bank balances are placed with subsidiaries
of state-owned banks and others are
placed with reputable financial institutions.
Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance of these banks.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue trade and other
receivables.

Rental deposits made to landlords are also
considered to be of low risk. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Other than the loan to a related
company as mentioned below, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.
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e MR RMEE

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(@

(i)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Risk management (Continued)

In respect of the loan to a related company,
as detailed in Note 30(d), the Group obtained
share mortgage executed by the mortgagor
and guarantees executed by the guarantor in
favour of the Group as a continuing security
and continuing obligation for performance
by the borrower of its obligations to minimize
the credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets
Trade receivables

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped with
similar risk characteristics and, collectively or
individually, assessing them for likelihood of
recovery.

The Group categorises its trade receivables,
except those individually assessed, based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profiles of sales over
a period of 12 months before 31 December
2019 and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Given the track record of regular repayment
of trade receivables, the directors are of
the opinion that the risk of default by these
customers is not significant, taking into
account forward-looking information on
macroeconomics factors. Therefore, expected
credit loss rate of trade receivables is assessed
to be insignificant.

For trade receivables relating to accounts in
which there are objective evidence that the
debtor faces significant financial difficulties
or enter liquidation, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance. No
specific loss allowance was made as at 31
December 2019 (2018: HK$654,000).

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The directors of the Group consider the
probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been
significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares risk of a default occurring on the
assets as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.
Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
company's ability to meet its obligations;
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e MR RMEE

3.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

e actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the company;

e significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the
company, including changes in the
payment status of the counterparty.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 90 days past due in making a
contractual payment/repayable demanded.

The loss allowance for other financial
assets at amortised cost as at 31 December
2019 amounted to HK$1,121,000 (2018:
HK$1,121,000) as detailed in Note 19.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and
other financial assets at amortised cost are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. Management maintains rolling
forecast of the Group’s liquidity reserves which
comprises undrawn banking facilities and cash and
cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash
flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MBRKREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEBREE @)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FEELE )
The table below analyses the Group’s financial THRERVBREBEESHL
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based FH AR THMREAEED
on the remaining period at the date of financial THRBES A TRMIEAE
reporting to the contractual maturity date. The G REFEENEELASE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HRIFRIVEIT ©
undiscounted cash flows.
Less than Between Over
1year 1tob5 years 5 years Total
—FHUR  1-5F 28 SFEULE e

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

At 31 December 2019 RZB-h&

t+=B=t-H

Trade and other payables & 5 & E A& 51 42,579 - - 42,579
Borrowings BE 47,384 - - 47,384
Interest payment EEZFEXNM

on borrowings 448 - - 448
Lease liabilities HERE 21,355 83,932 33,408 138,695
Interest payment on HEBEBEZFIELN

lease liabilities 5,241 15,378 1,322 21,941

At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\EF

+ZA=t—H
Trade and other payables &5 K H & (4 708 62,707 = = 62,707
Borrowings a8 57,444 - - 57,444
Interest payment on EEZFEXN
borrowings 546 - - 546
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e M RRME

3.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
total equity.

The Group's strategy was to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term. Given its existing principal
business, management considers a gearing ratio as
measured by total bank borrowings to total equity of
not more than 50% as solid and reasonable. The table
below analyses the Group’s capital structure at 31
December 2018 and 2019 as follows:

Total borrowings BIEE
Total equity HarEs

Gearing ratio BEAGLLE

Note:

Decrease in gearing ratio during the year is a result of the
decrease in total borrowings and increase in total equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying value of trade receivables, other loans
and receivables, bank balances and deposits, trade and
other payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December
2019 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

—  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1)

— inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2)

—  inputs for the asset and liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3)
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e M RRME

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Fair value
Hierarchy

D AEER

Financial assets SREE Level 2
— Investment funds -REHES £/

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
It includes quoted market price or dealer quotes for
similar instruments. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

B SR b B (@)
3.3 DAEEME @

Fair value Fair value

as at as at

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
R-E-h& RZZ—\F
+ZA=+-H +-A=+-H
WAAERE HAnEE
HKS$000 HK$'000

FET FHET

2,722 2,601

FRF1EF2E 2 W EEHE o

TENEEMSEEZSMTA
(WHIMTETR) - HRAETIE
REETEETE - ZFHETEE
ENARATERIT SIS 8E -
THEERDEEERBEAGS £
ERLSRT ANTISRERLH
BRE - W—ERTANAAEM
BB ERB ARG AEA -
AZERTARAE R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of
the Group are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Provision for impairment of loan to a related
company and trade and other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of loan to a
related company and trade and other receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of risk of default and
expected credit losses which involved management'’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the Group’s past collection history of receivables,
existing market condition as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. If the
financial conditions of any individual counterparty
were determined to be deteriorated, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Provision for impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
marketability of inventory items at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer suitable for sale. The management estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes provision for obsolete items.
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e M RRME

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(o)

(d)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes in each of these jurisdictions.
There are transactions and calculations during the
ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognized when
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilized. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and taxation charges in the period in
which such estimate is changed.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group tests where the property, plant and
equipment have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2(e). The
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
has been determined as the higher of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. The recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management. Key
assumptions used in the financial budgets include gross
profit margin, net profit margin, sales growth rate and
discount rate. As a result of the impairment assessment,
no impairment charge was necessary as the recoverable
amount calculated based on value-in-use exceeds its
carrying value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker
("CODM") that are used to make strategic decisions. The
CODM has been identified as the executive directors of
the Company. The CODM assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of the results of
the segments. Finance income and costs, and corporate
income and expenses are not included in the results for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other
information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the financial statements.

During the year, the Group has two reportable segments,
which are trading of pipes and fittings ("Trading of pipes
and fittings”) and manufacture and sale of biomass pellet
fuel products (“Biomass Pellet fuel products”). The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group's
reportable segments.

Trading of pipes and fittings includes wholesale, retail and
logistics operations substantially in Hong Kong and Macau.

Biomass pellet fuel products are contributed by a subsidiary
of the Group, EMHF BEHFHLIRBER QT (Guizhou
Zhongguan New Energy Limited*), which manufactures and
sells biomass pellet fuel products in the PRC.

*  For identification purpose only
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e M RRME

5. Segment information (Continued)

The segment information for the years ended 31 December

2019 and 2018 are as follows :

Revenue

Results of reportable segments

Reconciliation of results of
reportable segments to profit
for the year

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated loss
Unallocated expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment information:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for and write-off
of inventories, net
Reversal of impairment of
financial assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

5. 2WMER @

B2 NWFrkTE—N\F+=A
=+ —HIEZHEERIT :

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-B-NFr-A=t-HLEE

Reportable segments

EHND
Trading of Biomass Total
pipes and pellet fuel reportable
fittings  products segments Unallocated Total
EER 4AYWEER ZHEH
EHES REER 2HAE AAE pat
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
WA 527,552 3,819 531,371 = 531,371
DHEE 30,867 (7,213) 23,654 = 23,654
PHEEREEER
¥ R
DEEE
XOWEE (235)
AAWEH (19,417)
RERR 4,002
BB 10,343
HBER (8,471)
BADER 5,874
BB (1,444)
REERH 4,430
HinpHEH
mE - BELERE
M E 4,048 2,174 6,222 35 6,257
B EENH#H 34 = 34 = 34
HEWE - BFE R HE
ZBEFE 4 - 4 - 4
FERERMETEE
4,253 = 4,253 = 4,253
SREENRERR
(571) = (571) = (571)
FREEENE 25,737 = 25,737 = 25,737
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Segment information (Continued)

Revenue

Results of reportable segments

Reconciliation of results of
reportable segments to profit
for the year

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment information:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Net gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for and write—off
of inventories, net
Reversal of impairment of
financial assets

KA

AR

A RFERF ERT
Eaf

AERE
ADEHA
AR,
Syl
FBHRA
MBER

BiATER
BB

FEERH

HitpH&EH

n%k  BERREONE
HENE - BERRE
Pl v
FRRBIMEFE

TREENRER R

5.

2 EER @

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+-HLFE

Reportable segments

2BNHE
Trading of Biomass Total
pipesand  pellet fuel  reportable
fittings products  segments  Unallocated Total
EER HWEEN 25
EHES MHER HHeH A o
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
535,978 2,177 538,155 = 538,155
44,784 (3,536) 41,248 = 41,248
3,181
(23,017)
21,412
10,111
(2,051)
29,472
(4,621)
24,851
3,686 811 4,497 56 4,553
(136) - (136) - (136)
4,693 - 4,693 - 4,693
(544) - (544) (2,979) (3,523)
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e M RRME

5. Segment information (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019

and 2018 are as follows :

As at 31 December 2019

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total Assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total Assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total Liabilities

114

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

5. 2HER@®
RZE—NFER-_E—NF+=A
—t—BZoEEERBENOT :
Reportable segments
BTEHRND
Trading Biomass
of pipes pellet fuel
and fittings products  Unallocated Total
BER EYEEN
EHES BAER ROE pob
HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R-E-NE+=A=1+-H FET FET FET FET
FRBEE 149,961 10,559 78,299 238,819
MEBEE 519,463 5,188 31,900 556,551
BEE 669,424 15,747 110,199 795,370
FrReas (120,716) (305) = (121,021)
mEas (122,647) (4,039) (1,627) (128,313)
BaE (243,363) (4,344) (1,627) (249,334)
Reportable segments
BTEHRHONH
Trading Biomass
of pipes pellet fuel
and fittings products Unallocated Total
EER EYEBN
EHES WRRIEE N it
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
RZE-NF+-A=1+—H FEL FET FET FET
FEREBEE 15,914 12,695 105 28,714
MBEE 527,968 6,926 109,272 644,166
BEE 543,882 19,621 109,377 672,880
E NN (3,818) (396) = (4,214)
REAaE (120,233) @,514) (2,486) (127,233)
BaE (124,051) (4,910) (2,486) (131,447)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
Segment information (Continued) 5. DEPER @
Geographical information E D EBE R
The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group's revenues REBEZNES - REBRME S EH
from external customers by geographical location are REINEEFRIRALT -
detailed below:

Revenue
A

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Hong Kong B 480,027 508,391
Macau il 47,525 27,587
Mainland China R A 3,819 2,177
531,371 538,155

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location are REBZME D FHIEREEELNT ¢

detailed below:

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Hong Kong BA 227,039 14,790
Mainland China A, 11,780 13,924
238,819 28,714
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Segment information (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers:

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
revenue of the Group was recognised at a point in time.

Liabilities related to contracts with customers:

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

Contract liabilities — receipts in advance &R & & —FEU K

Contract liabilities for sales of goods contracts have
decreased by HK$1,991,000 due to a decrease in overall
contract activities.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was included ~ E#IMA& B & EHE

ERERRKA

in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2 ERER ()
REFERNBADE
BE-T - NGF+-A=t—BK=F

—N\F+ZA=+—HILFE - F5&
FYUA B A S MBI R BEHERR o

HEFEREBAMNASE

AEECERUATEEFARABENE
fg o

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
14,393 16,384

HEEWARMNARBERD T
1,991,000/87C © EmREBEARE
R T o

TRER T &R RS HEEZNRAS
B LEEEAFRAGERR

2019 2018
—E-hE —T—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
8,086 7,678




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Other gains, net

Net exchange gain/(loss)

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Gain/(loss) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Reversal of provision for customer
claim (Note 27)
Others

FE 5 deas, (B51R) 4R
HEWE - BELREB
2 (B1R) Wz 5
BArBEFABSZ
eMEEz W (BB
BARBEFABRZ
TREEZRSKA
EPEREDER
(M¥5E27)
Hit

e MR RMEE
Hit =258

2019 2018

—E-NF —EF-NE

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

206 (107)

(4) 136

109 (145)

108 105

= 3,694

225 584

644 4,267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME
7. Expenses by nature 7. AXME
Operating profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting): RTINS GTA) THIIEE ®E
[

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories sold (Note 18) BEHE 2 FERA (FiF18) 382,709 374,317
Amortisation of intangible A EREE (M3H15)
assets (Note 15) 34 -
Auditor’s remuneration: ZEATEN &
— Audit services —EIZIRT 1,023 1,300
— Non-audit services —IEBELARTE 180 196
Depreciation of property, plant M - BB R EITE (FitsE13)
and equipment (Note 13) 6,257 4,553
Depreciation of right-of-use HREEENE (M14)
assets (Note 14) 25,737 -
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 8 TRFIFY (fizEs) 67,106 72,295
Short-term and low-value lease RHREEEREZER (ME14)
expenses (Note 14) 2,651 -
Operating lease payments KENEER - 29,967
Reversal of impairment of SRVEERRE R
financial assets (571) (3,523)
Provision for and write-off GFEREXMIE
of inventories, net 4,253 4,693
Other expenses HAbh 38,634 37,212
528,013 521,010
Representing: (A
Cost of sales SHEMKA 402,120 390,671
Selling and distribution costs SHE K SHA AR 20,512 20,844
General and administrative expenses — RITEE R 105,952 113,018
Reversal of impairment of S REERRE R
financial assets (571) (3,523)
528,013 521,010

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M EmRME
Employee benefit expenses 8. EETFMEX
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Wages, salaries and other benefits ITE - #FrekEMER 64,672 69,867
Pension costs RIS AR
— defined contribution plans — ERAHEFGTE 2,429 2,399
Share-based payment (Notes 23(b) VAR A7 A B 2 TR
and 24) (F7E23(b) 224) 5 29
67,106 72,295
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EuBEHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the RER  AEBRAUGESHATE
highest in the Group for the year include two (2018: B (CE-NF: ZfD)ES -
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the HEHe 0 AW E320 0 kiR « 2
analysis shown in Note 32. The emoluments paid to NYESB=L(ZE—N\F : =)
the remaining three (2018: three) individuals were as AT 2B -
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Salaries and other short-term e REMEIREEET
employee benefits 4,433 4,244
Discretionary bonus BIBTEAL 1,189 2,676
Pension costs RIRE AR
— defined contribution plans — EREH ARG E 54 54
Share-based payment LARR 19 B ERE R 2 10
5,678 6,984
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME
8. Employee benefit expenses (Continued) 8.
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(b)

The emoluments of the three (2018: three) individuals

fell within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000

1,000,001%7T - 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001%7T - 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001/ T - 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001/ 7T - 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001 7T - 3,500,000/ 7T

Senior management remuneration by band (b)

The remuneration of senior management fell within the

following bands:

Nil - HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000

£ — 1,000,000

1,000,001 7T - 1,500,000 7T
1,500,001 7T - 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 - 2,500,000/ 7C
2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001 7T - 3,500,000/ 7T
3,500,001 7T — 4,000,000 7t

BHEBRAERDE

BERENFEX @

EfuGREHAL @

=2(CE-N\EF ZR)RERFA
TZHMNF T EE -

2019 2018

—F-NF —F-N\F

HKS$000 HK$000

FET FAT

1 _

1 1

- 1

1 -

- 1
EREEASHM 2 EHE

RMEBABZHHMN T T
:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET

1 —

1 1

= 1

2 —

= 2

1 1

5 5




10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Finance income, net

Bank and other interest income
Interest expense on bank borrowings
Interest expense on

lease liabilities (Note 14)

Tax expense

Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas tax
(Over)/under provision in prior years

Total current tax
Deferred taxation (Note 26):
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Tax expense

e MR RMEE
9. BWAFE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEIT
RITREHALF BULA (10,343) (10,111)
RITIEEZF B 2,335 2,051
HERGEZFEXE
(B#E14) 6,136 =
(1,872) (8,060)
10. HIEZH
2019 2018
- —T-N\F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
BNHEATRIE -
BEBENEH 777 3,845
BN TE 408 251
LARTEE (248) /DR (84) 21
BNEATR I 4858 1,101 4,117
EIEFIE (Ffi5E26)
RS AR 2 A N o
343 504
HIEZ M 1,444 4,621

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.

BT B BIAT NEFTE R & IR
#16.5% (ZF—/\F : 16.5%) 5% °
EONRIBTYIRIBF R 2 st ER T R
FIL AR B K& FTFER 2 IRITHRE

= o
Ea

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £

121



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

10. Tax expense (Continued) 10. BIEXZH @)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from REEB@ARAEF 2 HIBS P EES
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong KRAEBNEREmMTE 2 BmiE
Kong profits tax rate as follows: ZERWNT :
2019 2018
—2-hE —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax FRADEF| 5,874 29,472

Notional tax on profit before taxation,  FrEiATEFEY B FEFIE

calculated at the rates applicable to (LM e =R EA R

profits in the jurisdictions concerned EAEF R E 804 4,633
Effect of different tax rates in other HAtb BN A5 BRI R

jurisdictions 2B (1,039) (515)
Unrecognised tax losses ANHERTIEEE 2,760 1,954
Tax effect of income not subject to BARB WA

taxation METE (1,587) (1,580)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TAJHIFE 2 %~

taxation purposes BEgE 590 108
(Over)/under provision in prior years LARIEE (Z4R) /L (84) 21
Tax expense FIEZ 1,444 4,621
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11.

12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
and weighted average number of shares with adjustments
where applicable as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders ATESRERRTZ

of the Company for the purpose RARESFEAA
of basic earnings per share FEAG 5 A
Number of shares RGEE

Weighted average number of ordinary & &REAEF| 2
shares for the purpose of basic

earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares
arising from the Company’s share options. Diluted earnings
per share for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019 equal basic earnings per share as the exercise of the
outstanding share options would be anti-dilutive.

Dividend

At the Board meeting held on 27 March 2020, the Board did
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

11.

BB 2 i TR

12.

e MR R MR

BRER

TRIRAESREARN M EERTN
DIRBFERESHE ARGERTRE %
1T E BB N RRB(FEE T A
AE)

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
6,790 26,015
Thousands Thousands
FiR Fhg
1,333,270 1,333,270

AESREERNE  2HE TSR
B2 MEFH R BIEL AR - URRFAT
EEEEBH 2 RITEBREEESE
BoHEZT-NEFRZZTE—NF+=
A=Z+—HIMEAFE - BITERTE
BREAREEYE  AUMETFEZ
BERBERANYSNEREAREF)

3=\

R-E-_EBF=-A - ++-HETHNES
R BETETERREEE-ZT
—NF+_A=Z+—BLFEZRER
B(CZZE—N\F:E\) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. ¥ - BEREE

124

Plant, Office
machinery fumiture,
and  Leasehold fixtures Office ~ Computer Motor
equipment improvements  and fittings  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
BE B
% g Hi%E
RRE  NRRE IRE  ERE Bk g ]
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000
7én -7 7é1 -2 781 FA1 781
Cost s
At 1 January 2019 A-EZ-nE-A-H 9,661 16,723 218 124 4,909 15,696 49,831
xchange differences ERER o (102) (26) 0 ) - ()
Additions BE pi 36 30 - 61 2119 2800
Disposals e (129) (15) ) = = (80) (363)
At 31 December 2019 H-B-nE+ZR=1-R 9,649 16,705 270 13 4,969 17,895 52,061
Accumulated depreciation Ziffig
A1 January 2019 RZE-n¥-A-H 3,269 10,638 1063 i 4531 8,925 8454
Exchange differences EXZE ) (26) ® - ) - W)
Charge for the year TEENE 9% 1534 n pi 13 3003 6,257
Disposals & (129 (14) (1) - - (6) ()
At 31 December 2019 R-E-PETZA=1-8 4115 12,003 1426 57 4,662 1m 34385
Net book value KmEE
At 31 December 2019 Om -3 gl 5,534 4,102 129 66 307 5113 17,676

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Cost
At 1 January 2018
Exchange differences
Additions
Acquisiton of a subsiciary (Note 33)
Disposals

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2018
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2018

Net hook value
At 31 December 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

2

R-E-N\§-A-H
ERER
HE
Y -THBAAI )
il

R-%-N$1ZA=1-B

g
R-F-NE-A-A
EiZE
BERNE
te

R-F-NE+2Bzt-B

REFE
RoR-NET-A=1-R

13. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

13. Y% - BMERRE @

Plant, Office
machinery furnture,
and  Lessehold fixures Office  Computer Motor
equpment  improvements  andfittngs~ equipment equipment vehicles Total
e B G2
WEOmE R mE mee o s
S 000 5000 HS 000 #5000 S 00 #s000 300
i f#r A i Tér FAr FAr
3440 10,638 1,064 4 4718 10,002 99N
- - ® - @ (1 @)
2,19 36% 164 Y 133 6412 13,248
3405 2391 1,49 16 - - 1336
- - - - - (701) (101)
9,661 16,723 2718 124 4909 15,69 49831
2,800 9,680 90 10 433 6,941 24654
) (19 ] = @ (1) (2)
475 9 m 18 10 2702 4553
- - - - - (701) (101)
3269 10,638 1,063 B 4531 8925 28454
6,39 6,085 1,655 % 318 6,771 131
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

14. Lease

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. The Group has initially
applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, the Group adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to these leases (see note 2(g)). From 1 January 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as lease
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating
to leases:

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Buildings B¥

Equipment B

Total right-of-use assets EREEERTE
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current Vi)
Non-current FEMEN

Total lease liabilities HEBERSE

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019
financial year were HK$2,907,000.

126 SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

14.

HE

AEBRBEHEOFANVRBEAEARSL
RIRBEEE G EREN7TRDBREE
MEZZEME - AREEBRAEE
FIEMEERERBEMGHREERE
165% - RIEZ L - ARERFRER_-F
—NF—A—BRHINESRIAERE R
ZEHENHEERGE(RME29) - B
—T-AFE-A—HE - REREERR
REEMBHRRTERA/BERE -

()

EEEBERPHRINSH

BEABRREINTAEEEE 2R
B

As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-hF RZZE—NEF
+=A=+—H —A—H
HK$000 HK$°000
FETT FET
134,128 158,102
1,352 208
135,480 158,310
21,355 21,735
117,340 136,575
138,695 158,310

ERAREER T NFHHFE

#402,907,00058 7T, ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. Lease (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Amounts recognised in the Income statement

Income statement shows the following amounts relating
to lease:

Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE
assets (Note 7) (B#E7)

Buildings BF

Equipment B

Interest expense on

lease liabilities (Note 9) GE)
Short-term and low-value lease HHNMEEEHEEER
expenses (Note 7) (BF3E7)

The total cash payment for lease in 2019 was
HK$30,393,000.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, retail
shops and staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 to 10 years but may have
extension options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain various
terms and conditions.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These
terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in
terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor.

MERBZMESH

e MR R MR

14. HE @)

(i) WERFEINSE
WaRZ2INATEBHEZ SR

For the year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+—ALEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

25,367 =
370 =

25,737 =

6,136 =

2,651 =

i
2

Wi

“E-NFEBEEEZHEMAK
%8,/530,393,0005 7T °

(i) AEENEEFTHRAEARS
=X

rEEHEZEHRAE AR - F
EERETES - BO—REER
HI1 2104 - HERTBEARIR T XX Pt
ERBEMRE - HEGTIRERELE
R A e SRR R &M -

(iv) EERKILRERE

BN MERERSERM
RIDEZE - BLRFNEREBE M
EREEREEMREEEIEESD
BRAE o REDD BRI R
[ERAKETRE - MIFHERAH
HATTHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

15. Intangible assets

15. BILEE

16.

17.

Trademark

Opening net book amount
Addition
Accumulated amortisation

Closing net book amount

2019 2018

e —E-hEF —E-)N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

HAY Y BR R E _ _
NE 511 _
2y (34) _
BRMEREDEE 477 _

For the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation expense
of $34,000 (2018: nil) is included in “cost of sales” (Note 7).

Subsidiaries

16.

Details of principal subsidiaries which, in the Directors’
opinion, materially affect the results and/or net assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, are set out in Note 34.

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets included in
consolidated statement of financial
position:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables, deposits and

other receivables
Pledged certificate of deposit (Note 21)
Pledged bank deposits (Note 21)
Cash and bank balances (Note 22)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 20)

Total

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

HE-_ZTZ-NEF+-_A=+—HILF
- R Y 34,0000 (ZE— N\ F ¢
) BEETASEERA] (IEE7) °

B S 2 B
EERARUAREZEER /TN _F
—NWE+ZA=+—BZFEEBKE
R B2 E2MBRRZFIBIANME
34

17. ZEEE SNSRI A
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET—N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
BEEFEHHERTERN
SREE
DR AT ENSREE
BoRIEIE ke k
H U GRIE 213,429 209,548
BB ERE FFE21) 10,000 10,000
BRI TR (FI5E21) 36,000 31,000
Re RIRTT4EH (F1FE22) 157,683 130,117
BARBEFABIRZ
R EE (Fi5E20) 2,722 2,601
4= 419,834 383,266
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

17. Financial instruments by category (Continued)

18.

Financial liabilities included in
consolidated statement of
financial position:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Borrowings (Note 25)

Lease liabilities (Note 14(i))

Total

Inventories

Raw materials
Merchandises

BEEFEME
RRRNEEMEE :

17. ZREEEPNEMI A @

NEHRAGTEN SR AR

Z 5 REMENTIE
& (KI3E25)
e a & FIEE140)

#EE

JRFTH
i

At 31 December 2019, the provision for impairment of
inventories amounted to approximately HK$16,223,000

(2018: HK$16,685,000).

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$382,709,000

(2018:HK$374,317,000) (Note 7).

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
42,579 62,707
47,384 57,444
138,695 -
228,658 120,151
18. 78
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
14 242
191,512 235,067
191,526 235,309

RZZ—NF+=A=+—8 " BER
B #93£16,223,0008 T (ZT—N

£ 1 16,685,000/67T) °

BRAEZBWIABEEXNAETNZ2FE
X A3E382,709,00008 7T (ZE— )\ -

374,317,000 7T) (i5E7) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

19. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less: loss allowance (Note 3(b)(ii))

Trade receivables — net

Prepayments

Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder (Note 30(c))

Other receivables, deposits and
other assets

Rental deposits

Loan to a related company
(Note 30(d))

Less non-current portion:
Rental deposits and other assets
Loan to a related company

19.

Z 5 W RIA
B BRI (BHRE3 b))

B 7 e MR IA — 5

SEAR DN

FEUR — (L IEPERE AR R SR IE
(P 5E30(c))

Hib WA « me Rk
HihEE

HERe

ERT—REEAT
(FFE(30(d))

BIEREN R -
HEZE MEMEE
ERT—HEERR

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables
and rental deposits approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2019, included in other receivable, loan
to a third party of HK$1,121,000 (2018: HK$1,121,000) was
impaired and provided for. Although the loan was secured by
certain assets of the third party, the Group considered that
the recoverability may take a long time and was uncertain.
In this connection, the balance amount of the loan was fully

provided for.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BHEBRAERDE

E 5 RHEMEWRRIE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-NE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
121,007 115,401
- (654)

121,007 114,747
26,920 30,817
3,106 4,697
4,611 5,098
6,476 6,466
78,229 78,540
119,342 125,618
240,349 240,365
(6,957) (7,337)
(78,229) -
155,163 233,028

B REFOR - At RUGANEER
2 RASBERELAEERE °

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 " 2%
EEMEBEWZRES BERT—EF
=FH91,121,0008 L (ZF—\F :
1,121,000 7)) EVERER M o B A
EXBRE-FMETEEERR AR
SERATEKER R ZREREM
BT - it - ZERNBRTEE R
TERAE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o BB E AN
19. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 19. E 5 & Hth EULFRIE (1)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other AEBE S RHEMEBWHIBZRESRE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: AP E8EEHE -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
HK$ BT 128,463 130,545
RMB AR 5,161 7,029
usb ET 104,491 101,103
MOP SRPTHE 2,230 1,508
Others Hftb 4 180
240,349 240,365
The Group generally grants credit period of 60-120 days to AEE—RETEEREMHESHEBE
its customers for its trading of pipes and fittings operation. FZEEHARC0E120K - B 5 EIWHK
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on the due HRFEIR 2 BRE DI T -
date is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Within credit period ZE8R 69,260 68,882
1 to 30 days 1 K230k 24,463 23,710
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K 13,094 12,245
61 to 90 days 61 RXZE90K 7,667 6,281
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K 3,704 1,365
Over 120 days HBi@E120K 2,819 2,918
121,007 115,401

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F3#f 131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

19. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowance for all trade receivables reconcile
to the opening loss allowance are as follows:

Loss allowance as at 1 January 2018
under HKAS 39

Loss allowance for trade receivables

Unused amount reversed

Receivables written off during the year
as uncollectible

Loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 and

1 January 2019 under HKFRS 9

Unused amount reversed
Receivables written off during the year
as uncollectible

Loss allowance as at 31 December 2019
under HKFRS 9

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. This has not resulted in a
significant change to the loss allowance of trade receivables as

at 1 January 2019.

19. EZ REMEBYRKIE @)
B 5 AR R R 1R B 1 B A ) S

BEENEERNT ¢
HK$°000
FET
RZZE—NF—A—BREEEL:

AERI|Z5395% MBS 1B e 2,016
E 5 R IER EEEE 22
RE)FAFIRE (566)
B R WORRIBR R A UK [0 0 i 8

(818)
RZZE—NF+A=+—HER=ZE

—NF—A—BREEEMBHREER

FORABERE 654
RE)FAFIARE (571)
B X JFE W R A UK [0 T i 8

(83)

R-E—NE+-_A=+—HBIREFBH
S ERIE SR A B IR A —

AEBERBBRBHEHREENFIRE
L EAERREEER  RAEES
R FERFHEREAFERANEHE
B-R-F-NAF—-A—RH EAKRE
HEZRRFENEERBELEAE
{|He

There was no loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 R-ZZE—NEFE+-_A=+—H8 " 28E

December 2019 (2018: HK$654,000).

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and

SEWZENEERE (T —N\F
654,000/ 7T) °

BB P RWGIERE &A% E R

the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk and credit risk HINEE [ B2 % 15 B R B ) R B A B 5

can be found in Note 3.1.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above.
Save as disclosed above, the Group does not hold any

collateral as security.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

3.1

RBEBRZEAEERR A LAEE
FEW IR 2 DA fE © BR EXXFTRERSD
RS B SR (AT R (A

BHEBRAERDE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. Financial assets at fair value through profit

21.

or loss

Investment funds at fair value — unlisted

Pledged bank deposits and certificate of
deposit

As at 31 December 2019, bank deposits of HK$36,000,000
(2018: HK$31,000,000) denominated in HK$ were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 25).

The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits was
1.83% (2018: 1.89%) per annum and these deposits are
maturing within 13 to 156 days (2018: 11 to 155 days).

As at 31 December 2019, certificate of deposit of
HK$10,000,000 (2018: HK$10,000,000) was denominated in
HK$ and was pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (Note 25). The effective interest rate on the pledged
certificate of deposit is 1.75% (2018: 1.5%) per annum and
this deposit is maturing within 86 days (2018: 214 days).

e MR R MR

20. RARBEEFABRZEZERMEE

BARBEMNREES LD

21.

2019 2018
—g-nE  —TN\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHET
2,722 2,601

EEARTERRFRE

R—ZE—NLEF+=-A=+—8
36,000,000 L (ZE—N&F :
31,000,000/ 70) MBS TEHEZ R1T1F
REFLER  EAAEERITEESE
B2 &R (MisE25) °

BEBRTERZERINEAEF S
1.83% (ZZF—\F : 1.89%) ' &=
HZBHANF13REIS6 R (ZE—N
&F: 11RE155K) o

R—_ZE—NALF+_A=+—8 "
10,000,0008 (=& —N\F
10,000,000/ 70) LAB TTETE 2 F ik 7E
ETUER - ERAXEERITEES
EZERME25) - ERFFEREZ
BERMEAES1.75% (T — \F
1.5%) + BZ AR EES6 RANEIA (=
E—)\F : 214K) °
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Ga P BEENE
22. Cash and bank balances 22. RERBITEER
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances e RIRITER 157,683 130,117
Maximum exposure to credit risk AR EREERR 157,516 129,906
The carrying amounts of the Group and the Company’s REBRARNG 2 RS MIRITHEBZER
cash and bank balances are denominated in the following ASEIRATEBHE
currencies:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
HK$ BT 113,740 97,061
RMB AR 16,526 13,058
usD ETT 22,171 17,561
Others HAh, 5,246 2,437
157,683 130,117
The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign AN REEGHE 2 AR IR RINE K&
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland ZEESERPEAN - AP BT
China is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed B2 INEE BIFEIEIRR o

by the PRC government.
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23. Share capital

At 1 January and 31 December 2019

At 1 January and 31 December 2018

(a) Issued shares

b)

The authorized share capital of the Company was
HK$500,000,000, comprising 25,000 million shares
with a par value of HK$0.02 per share. All issued shares
are fully paid.

Share option scheme

The share option scheme approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 24 June 2004 (the “2004 Scheme")
has expired on 23 June 2014. Thereafter, no further
options will be granted under the 2004 Scheme but
the subsisting options granted thereunder prior to the
expiry date will continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the 2004 Scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 21 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “2015 Scheme”) under which the directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible persons to
subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the terms
and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the 2015 Scheme will remain
valid for a period of 10 years from the date of its
adoption.

No share option under the 2015 Scheme was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed, during the current year
nor outstanding as at 31 December 2019.

A—E—NF—A—H
E+=—A=+—H

R=—E—N\F—H—H
E+=—A=+—H

e MR R MR

23. ®R&

Number of
shares issued
CERITRAOEE
thousands HK$°000
FHR FET
1,333,270 26,665
1,333,270 26,665
(a) BEITRH

(b)

RAFEFERZA /500,000,000
Br o BEBREE0.02B T
25,000,000,000% 485K - Fi B %
TROHEBEHE -

BRESTE

AARBRER _ZEZTMENA
T B #E s ERERTEI([=F
BEHE D EN - E—MERA
ZH=HEm - g - BEREC
TENFEBRHBERE - AR
B B ERRTARIE — ST AT BIE
S RS E A R AT T
1718 -

KR-ZE-—AFRRA-_+—RHTZ
ARABRRBFAEG L ARF
PR R R R & ([ —F
—HFEE] Bl ARRES
ARAEEMALTREBIRE - AR
BARRED AR -F—01F
FHEIMRE 2 RR BRI ATAR IR © BR
SITBUHMERT SN » —F—RF&
28 B 2R B BRI A
FrAR -

RN R RS A R AR
“T-REFEIERE - 1TE &
R TEBRER —F— 1
FHZA=t—HHRETE
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e MR RMEE

23. Share capital (Continued)

b) Share option scheme (Continued)

The Company was authorised to grant share options
under the 2015 Scheme for subscription of up to a total
of 133,327,000 shares, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of adoption.
The directors of the Company are authorised at their
absolute discretion, to invite any eligible participants as
defined in the Scheme, to take up options to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The subscription price will
be determined by the Board, but shall be at least the
highest of (a) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date on which the relevant options are deemed to
be granted and accepted in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme (“the Commencement Date"”), which
must be a day on which the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading
Day”); (b) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet for the five Trading Days immediately
preceding the Commencement Date; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares. A consideration of HK$10
is payable on acceptance of the grant of option. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2015 Scheme may not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of adoption of the 2015 Scheme. The
number of shares may be refreshed by the approval of
the shareholders and the refreshed limit of the number
of shares must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the approval
of the refreshed limit.

As a result of the share consolidation become effective,
the exercise price and the number of consolidated
shares to be issued upon the exercise of the outstanding
options granted under the 2004 Scheme have been
adjusted in accordance with the terms of the 2004
Scheme and Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

23. IRZ& (#%)
(b) BBIRFESTE ()

RARVERERBE-_S—RAF:
AR EREARERZ AKX
133,327,0008% /%17 + (hAEEA B
HARBEBITRAZI10% &
BERNREZERBBEETWNE
BR2mE (TE LERETE) &
T REBAR B 2 BAHE - R
BEBHESSET ' HETEER
(@B B BRI R AR R
fe iR BRI B R mE B ([F
WEH]) (BAEEBHITEEE
HFEEEHB2AHIRSBINE
BB RIEHRERATIR T
& ()R D N EEEFA B ERpEE
AERSBHEREHI AT ARE
K@z FHWTE  ROBRMDE
E-HFTZHREE BEHARLZE
DRI - AR AEZ10E T
ZRE - REBE-_E—REHEEL
ZERES R o BhEaEE - T
BRBEM—E—RAEHEAEHAAE
NAIBBETRAZ10% ° BIDEE
AR HT - T 2R
DEE ERTEBEEEH LR
ZAHARBREBEITRAZ10% °

RIRG & FHERIE - BREBERARARN
ZETFFEIE B E R RITER
BRI TR E RATTERS T8
TZAMBROEBZR-_ETWNFsT
Elm g Rk EmARAI%17.03(13)
{FIELFRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. Share capital (Continued)

b) Share option scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
during the year are as follows:

Date of grant

RHAH

3 December 2009
“EENET-A=H

5 May 2010
“2-T4RATA

Total#8%8

Exercise

Price

Date of maturity HKS
6@

2R BT

2 December 2019
ZE-NEtZAZA 0.71

4 May 2020

—Z_ZERAMA 0.83

e MR R MR

23. IRZ& (##%)
(b) BBRAESTE ()
FR - HARTTERBEERE 2E2F

LU
Granted

31 December and 31 December
2018 accepted Exercised Lapsed 2019
= St = S
T=R e:
=t-0 ERHLEH 27 BAM =t-H
15,000,000 - - (15,000,000) -
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
16,000,000 - - (15,000,000) 1,000,000

Out of 1,000,000 (2018: 16,000,000) outstanding share
options, 1,000,000 (2018: 15,280,000) share options

were exercisable.

The estimated fair value of share options granted is
based on the Binomial model. The significant inputs into
the models are as follows:

Date of grant

Exercise price
Expected volatility
Option life

Annual risk free interest rate

Dividend yield
Fair value

RHAH

1TEfE
R IE
BT

g/%\$
NAEE

F R EER

The expected volatility measured at the standard
deviation is based on the historical data of the weekly
share price movement of comparable companies of the

Company.

71,000,000/ (=& — )\ F :
16,000,000)fE #%# 71,000,000
(ZZF—/)\# : 15,280,000) i & 0]
1718 -

EROBRENET A BERE
ZHEAGERATE - HAKER

WEE28WT :
5 May 2010 3 December 2009
—F-FF —EBFAF
BRAERA +=H=H
HK$0.83 HK$0.71
55% 54%
10 years 10 years
10 & 10 &
2.86% 2.16%
3.10% 3.58%

HK$0.26 ~ HK$0.38 HK$0.21 ~ HK$0.31
EREEME CTAHIRE D ERAR

ARZ AL ARSARG EEED
B 5 B -
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23. Share capital (Continued)

b) Share option scheme (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

On 3 December 2009, 59,200,000 share options
were offered to and accepted by Directors and
employees, with an exercise price of HK$0.71 and
an option period of 10 years commencing from 3
December 2009 and expiring on 2 December 2019
(both days inclusive). The options granted to the
grantees are vested in stages and be exercised in
the following manner:

23. IRZ& (#%)

(b) FBRAETE @

(i)

R-ZFBEZNEFE+=-_A=A8"
AEBAESEREEBENT
B ER 4959,200,00017 BB A
o ZEBREZOTEER
0.71 B T RIBIRER A+
&F - m_?7n¢+ A=
BREBE-_Z—HhhF+_-A
EWM@%E%@E)?%
%%FAW%&%#“%&
BB WIRIATAX7fE :

Maximum Period for exercise of the relevant
percentage of the options exercisable percentage of the options
A{TEZBRERSADL TEAEBERER DL ZHR
20% 3/6/2010 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2011 —2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2012 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2013 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2014 - 2/12/2019

On 5 May 2010, 1,600,000 share options were
offered to and accepted by a Director and an
employee, with an exercise price of HK$0.83 and
an option period of 10 years commencing from 5
May 2010 and expiring on 4 May 2020 (both days
inclusive). The options granted to the grantees are
vested in stages and be exercised in the following

(ii)

RZE—ZFTFRAFRAB K
SERESEREBEZENIE
FEE 491,600,000 B -
ZEEREZITHEE ARSI
BT R BRERR AT F
H-_ZE—ZFRARAHAM
E-_E_TFFAMNBEH

manner: (BHEEEMA) - BFEK
AR BRIERG DIERES
WHZLA T RATIE -
Maximum Period for exercise of the relevant
percentage of the options exercisable percentage of the options
ATEZEBRESSEDL TREMEEERER DL ZHR

20% 5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020

20% 5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020

20% 5/11/2012 — 4/5/2020

20% 5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020

20% 5/11/2014 — 4/5/2020

Vesting of certain options granted to certain
employees are subject to achievement of profit
target.

BHEBRAERDE

(iii)

ﬁ%%?ﬁiZ”?%%%
BEIRFEBEHARET
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e MR R MR

24. Reserves 24. f#fE
Share-
Capital Merger based
Share reserve reserve  Statutory Other  Exchange  payment  Retained
premium (notef)) (notefi) reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Wkt
EfE  oREE BERN
ROEE () ) tERE AEBR O EXER MRER  RER i
HS000 000 HS000 HS 000 HKS000 000 HS000 HS000 500
FAT AT TET FET Tér FAT Y2 Fér FAT
At 1 January 2018 R5-N\F-A-H 126618 3115 3700 U 1,05 1103 525 313,360 485377
Proftfor the year RERH - - - - - - = 26,015 26,015
Curency ransaton differences ~ SHEEEE - - - - - (1,161) - e (1,167
Share-based payment IR BRI - - - - - - i - 9
Actuariallogs on postemployment B BRIER RS
benefitobligation, netof tax EE ThiEE - - - - (110) e e e (110
Transfer upon apse of share optons BB e = S = = S = (925) 95 =
At 31 December 2018 and HoE-NE
1 January 2019 TZR=T-Rk
“E0F-A-8 126,618 3115 3,700 U 1,09 (58) 4,356 340,300 510,150
Proftfor the year REERT - - - - - - - 6,790 6,790
Curency transaton diferences SHhERE - - - - - (425) - = (425)
Share-based payment IR BERART - - - - - - 5 - 5
Actuarial gain on postemployment B AERIEHAEL
benefitobligations, netof tax Wt - AR - - - - 636 - - - 636
Transfer upon lapse of share options~ REE 2 R - - - - - - 8012) 401 -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=1-f 126,618 34115 3700 U 1731 (483) 349 351,102 517,156
Notes: Bt
() The capital reserve of the Group mainly represents contribution () AEEZEAFHEEZERR—NAANLE

from the shareholders in connection with the acquisition of the
remaining interests in a subsidiary in 1999.

(i)  The merger reserve of the Group arising from the Group
reorganisation is determined by the difference between the
nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares deemed to have been issued.

(i)

Wi B AR MR ERIRE
BERE -

AEBREEEAMEL ZAHRE -
THEEEEAEAZ B RRRNEE
BB BT Z AR BN EEREM
ZEBEE
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25. Borrowings

Current

Trust receipt loans, secured (note (i)
Trust receipt loans, unsecured

Notes:

(i)  The carrying amounts of the trust receipt loans approximate (i)
their fair values. As at 31 December 2019, the banking
facilities were secured by corporate guarantees, bank deposits
of HK$36,000,000 (2018: HK$31,000,000) and certificate of
deposit of HK$10,000,000 (2018: HK$10,000,000).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

25. E&

HE

B HERETERRE R PHREG)
EERETRIEER

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-NE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
35,724 31,694
11,660 25,750
47,384 57,444

BiE -

EARBERZEESHARSER
AEHREE R_ZE—NAFE+ A
=+—8  RITHEHLAER -
$RITE R #)36,000,0008 T (=&
— )\ : 31,000,000/ 7T) R IF B

#310,000,0008 L (ZZE—NF :
10,000,00078 7T) 1E3E I -

(i) The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: @iy EEUATIEES|E :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T—)\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
HK$ BT 47,384 57,444
(iiy  The effective interest rates (per annum) of bank borrowings at (iiy RYPBHER - RITEEZBERFEN=R
the financial reporting date are as follows: L
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
Trust receipt loans FEFEBRER 4.26% 4.15%

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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26. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled

after 12 months EEHIBRE

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences under the
liability method using tax rates of the relevant subsidiaries
applicable to the period when the asset is expected to be
realised or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates that
have been substantively enacted by the financial reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on
a net basis.

The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

m—A—H
W —K B AR

At 1 January
Acquisition of a subsidiary

Charged to income statement (Note 10) 7EUzs 2R AR 0Bk (FiE10)
TERER R (FIBR) FT A

(Charged)/credited to equity
Exchange differences HEH =5

At 31 December Rnt+=-—A=+—H

B+ —EAREEZ

e MR R MR

26. ELERIE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
(1,816) (1,352)

ELERBERAEEEINEAHBARE
HEESRNABRE 2 HRMER
HE (R BRE B CEMXELRT)
TER A -

EREEREN T A AT IR & A AN H]
HIBREEE - MEEHIBEERLE
BMRAESRFE—REEEEK - —K
RPN RH TR ERT A TG EH
BRELUFBER - QSRR AEE
EREN IR B E G AR o

BETIEMR B 2 SBFRAT ¢

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
(1,352) (436)
- (435)
(343) (504)
(126) 22
5 1
(1,816) (1,352)
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e M RRME

26. Deferred taxation (Continued) 26. IEFEDBIE (4)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during BEREEERBERFTAZES R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of STRPRERBT R AR &) W
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: ™
Deferred tax assets ELEBIREE
Tax losses
BkER
HK$°000
FET
At 1 January 2018 N—E-N\F—H—H 40
Charged to income statement e ER 2= R (40)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+ZHA=+—H =
Charged to income statement fEE TR kR -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+_A=+—H -
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEBEERE
Remeasurement
gain of post-
Accelerated employment
tax benefit
depreciation obligations Lease Total
BRARTIER
MEHEHRE  NESEUE g 8
HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-\F—A—H (238) (238) - (476)
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-FHELF (435) = = (435)
Credited to income statement ERERPETA (464) = = (464)
Charged to equity TR = 2 = 2
Exchange differences ELES 1 - - 1
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NE+ZA=1-H
1 January 2019 kZZ-nE-A-A (1,136) (216) - (1,352
Credited/(charged) to income statement  ZEMERA:T A/ (F1%) 187 - (530) (343)
Charged to equity EREERG - (126) = (126)
Exchange differences ELESR 5 - - 5
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NE+-R=1-H (944) (342) (530) (1,816)

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred taxation (Continued) 26.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of HK$6,090,000 (2018: HK$3,704,000) in respect
of accumulated tax losses amounting to HK$27,928,000
(2018: HK$17,536,000) as at 31 December 2019, that can
be carried forward against future taxable income. As at 31
December 2019, the accumulated tax losses amounting to
HK$13,791,000 (2018: HK$6,599,000) will be expired in five
years. There is no expiry period for the other tax losses.

Trade payables, other payables and contract 27.

liabilities

Trade payables B SN FIA

Contract liabilities aRAE

Accrued expenses and TER B A KR E fth BT 5B
other payables (note) (BR3)

Notes:

In prior years, there was a provision for a customer claim of
HK$3,694,000 in respect of a project in Hong Kong. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, management reassessed the
circumstances and considered that the chance for claim has became
remote and therefore has made a reversal of the provision in the
consolidated income statement.

e MR R MR

IESERLE (4)

BEEMSHEBEEET A EMEBERG
F 2% 7] 3 18 K 2K FE SR B 0R F £ 3R i
PATAE  MIBERHEELER - A5
BYABH—_FT—hhF+-_A=+—H
A 4588 DA S R R IE R T MR 2 R 5T
THIEE1827,928,0008 L (ZFE— N\
£ :17,536,000/8 1) lERELEFTS
FRIBEEG6,090,0008 L (ZZE— N\
& :3,704,00087L) - R=ZZT—NF
+-A=Z+—8B: ZERFAHEE
Hi#13,791,0008 L (ZF— N\ F :
6,599,000/ 7T) KR AFAEIHE - &
b R TE B 1B 30 4 [ 2R o

B EARE - HEARER
BRAE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
30,537 33,904
14,393 16,384
13,826 18,939
58,756 69,227

REER—BRBEFEEENEEEY
3,694,000 TR FAERFEMNRE - #Z=
—E-NF+ZA=+—HBFILFE EE
BEHTERILREEFRENRE T
RE) - BB B R ER ARG R o
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27. Trade payables, other payables and contract
liabilities (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on
the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 30 days 30RLA
31 to 60 days 31RE60K
61 to 90 days 61RKE90K
Over 90 days HEI0K

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, other
payables and contract liabilities are denominated in the
following currencies:

HK$ BIT
usb ETT
RMB AR
Others EA

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

27.

ESEMARE HUESRER
EREE@

AEEE G REMNFIBNERRIZEERNE

DR -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—\F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

25,515 26,878

3,190 3,518

1,178 2,350

654 1,158

30,537 33,904

AEE B HRMNFIR - HMEN TR
ReRaEZERESRRATEE

#:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
28,436 35,630
21,747 22,782
4,455 4,787
4,118 6,028
58,756 69,227
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28. Commitments

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no capital
expenditure contracted for but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements.

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, retail
shops and staff quarters under non-cancellable
operating leases expiring within five months to eight
years. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses
and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases
are renegotiated. From 1 January 2019, the Group has
recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except
for short term and low-value leases, see note 2 for
further information.

L RIET
R

Land and buildings
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later
than five years

Later than five years R TF
Equipment and motor vehicles BB RAE
Not later than one year TEBA—F

Later than one year and not later
than five years

e MR R MR

28. &iE

(a)

(b)

BE—F R THEBRF

BE—FRTHBBRF

B EE

R-FB-—NF+=-A=+—8-
SEYNRA DR & REDARRE
BMBHREBEHNEAF -

R ERE

AREERBENAIREHENEEHER
RZERAE BfE TEENME
IEsE - HHOKHSEAZFAR
28 - HMERFTRBGK - 28
{GRRFABEME - BAERS - E R
REHHE - BT NF—HA—
B - AEREDHERELHENE
REEE - (BRIMEEERER
o FHIERMIE2 -

2019
—B-hF
HK$°000
FET

2018
—E2—-N\F
HK$'000
FET

= 29,004

= 85,664
- 72,617

- 187,285

- 188,607
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29. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash

flows

Cash flows from operations

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net (note)
Interest income
Interest expense
Reversal of impairment
of financial assets
Provision for and write-off
of inventories, net

Reversal of provision for customer claim

(Gain)/loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Share-based payment
Exchange difference
Changes in working capital:

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and
other receivables

Decrease in trade payables, other
payables and contract liabilities

Net cash generated from operations

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

REXBEEZRTRE

LA 7
LSBT

EREEENE

HEWE - BEREREZ
B8, (Weas) 8 (iR

FBUA

MBS

T RE EAYRUE 5

7 B B R 5 RR

BARBEH RS SRE
BER0 (has), /18
AR EE AR
SREEOBR SN
BAIRID BB
5238

LEELED

RS,/ (#00)

B 5 R B

(&), m
BHRENFOR - HEMAFIR
RERAERD
REXBELEZREFHER

BHEBRAERDE

29. mEHRE

MEBRHE

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,874 29,472
34 =
6,257 4,553
25,737 =
4 (136)
(10,343) (10,111)
8,471 2,051
(571) (3,523)
4,253 4,693
- (3,694)

(109) 145
(108) (105)

5 29
509 (482)
39,530 (35,304)
(1,192) 39,232
(10,828) (12,767)
67,523 14,053
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29. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 29. KEBEERERKT @
flows (Continued)

Cash flows from operations (Continued) REEBELECHERE @
Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment Hiat - BEWE - BERREZAERER
comprises: 1
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHT
Net book amount BREFAE 84 =
(Loss)/gain on disposal HEZ (&8, (4) 136
Proceeds from disposal HEFTS KA 80 136
Represented by: K& :
Cash Re 80 136
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities TRUEBEAMBENYHERAT ¢
is as follows:
Borrowings Lease liabilties Total
& HEEE B
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2018 RZE—-/\¥—A—H (70,477) = (70,477)
Cash flows Rene 13,033 - 13,033
As at 31 December 2018 and RZE-\F+-A=1T—H
1 January 2019 R=E-N&—H—H (57,444) - (57,444)
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS16  FRAVE B 51 164 RIS 165585
HFAE - (158,310) (158,310)
Cash flows Rene 10,060 22,522 32,582
Additions NE - (2,907) (2,907)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+_A=1—H (47,384) (138,695) (186,079)
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30. Related party transactions
Transactions for the year

(a) Key management compensation

Salaries and other short
term employee benefits

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

Share-based payment

Rental paid to a related
company (note)

Note:

The Group paid rental of a car and a car licence to a company
controlled by Mr. Lai Guanglin, the former executive director
and Chairman of the Company who resigned on 30 March
2018 and currently a major shareholder of the Group, for a
fixed sum of RMB12,000 (equal to HK$13,900) per month as
agreed by both parties. This is also a connected transaction

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

e kHERRERER
RIRERRA — ERHFGEHE

VAR 17 AR LR 2 5 5K

(b) (i) Rental payment to a related party

XNEeE—HEEAR

(B35

which is exempted under the Listing Rules 14A.76.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BHEBRAERDE

30. BEALRS
FARS
(a) EEEZASHH

2019 2018

=t S
HK$000 HK$°000
FHT FET
14,603 18,260

126 126

5 29

14,734 18,415

(b)) EIEFEA LI E

2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
167 163

fiE

AEERBEHLERAEER —RHHA
ARRAMAERITEETHRERE(BER=
T-NF=ZA=ZT+HET RAEE
AT ERELai Guanglinfe A4
AAZHBHEFBENTABREER
12,000 AR¥ (57 13,900/%7T) ° It
R G INBIRE ETEGI4A 7615
RIEITERRER S ©
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30. Related party transactions (Continued) 30. BEAEIRZ @
Transactions for the year (Continued) FARZ (&)
(b) (ii) Consultancy fees to related parties (b)ii) [FEEEN £+ Z 118 E
2019 2018
—E-hF AN
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Consultancy fee paid to Mr. Lai ¥ 5 FLai Guanglin
Guanglin (note 1) TEMERE FRED 744 2,232
Consultancy fee paid to a related YT —RREA A
company (note 2) KB & (3E2) 2,232 =

Notes: Hiat -

1. From 1 January 2019 to 31 March 2019, the Group 1. HZE-NF-—A-HBEZZ-Z
paid consultancy fee to Mr. Lai, for a fixed sum of —hE=A=+—8 ' £&ERA
HK$248,000 per month as agreed by both parties. This Laift £ e FBENE A
is a connected transaction which is exempted under Rule TE248,0008 LRI E © It 5
14A.76 of the Listing Rules. ARG ETTARAI4A 761K M ES

HRHBERS

2. From 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Group 2. BHIZE-hAhEFWMA—HRHEZZT
paid consultancy fee to a company owned by Mr. Lai, —NEFE+=-A=+—8 " r5£H
for a fixed sum of HK$248,000 per month as agreed M—EBLaik £ B 2 AR
by both parties. This is a connected transaction which is MmEFHENS AEE248,000
exempted under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. BITERE - WS ABE LT

RAN4A 7615 IER TR R RS
Year end balances
FREE
2019 2018
—ZE-hF ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(c) Amount due from a non-controlling (c) FER—FIIEERRARRFRIR
shareholder 3,106 4,697
The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on e AEEHN . AR NIREREE -

demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

30. Related party transactions (Continued)
Year end balances (Continued)

(d) Loan to a related company

On 1 August 2016, the Group advanced a loan of
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,746,000) to
China Victory International Holdings Limited (“CVIL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agria Corporation, for a
term of 3 years.

The loan carried interest at 10.5% per annum and is
repayable by 31 July 2019. The loan is secured by the
entire issued shares of CVIL executed by Agria Group
Limited (“AGL"), the immediate holding company
of CVIL, and also guaranteed by a deed of corporate
guarantee executed by Agria Corporation in favour
of the Group. Mr. Lai Guanglin, a then director and
ultimate controlling party of the Company, is also a
controlling shareholder of Agria Corporation.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general
meeting on 23 February 2018, the Group and CVIL
agreed to novate and AGL, a wholly owned subsidiary
of Agria Corporation and the immediate holding
company of CVIL, agreed to assume the Group's loan to
CVIL of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,357,000)
with all other terms and conditions remained
unchanged.

On 9 May 2019, the Group entered into a loan
agreement (“2019 Loan Agreement”) with AGL to
renew the loan and the annual caps from 1 August
2019 to 31 July 2022.

The annual caps of the maximum principal loan
outstanding for the financial years ended/ending 31
December 2019, 31 December 2020, 31 December
2021 and period ending 31 July 2022 were
US$10,000,000 for each year/period.

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED RBHEIMRERLT

30. BEAXRZ @
FRERE ()

(d)

BT —EEERA

R—ZE—X"ENA—HB &%
BEmHTEBHBREEFR A A
(fcviLl) (Agria Corporationty
—BWEEWB AR B THIR3IFE
) E 10,000,000 7T (HHER
77,746,000 7T) °

ZEFAEL10.5% 8 - B
RZE—NFEtA=+—HBZHAH
B - ZERACVILWEEERA
A]Agria Group Limited[AGL] 17
CVILB 2 B B BITR M EER K
Agria Corporation¥i1T¥ AR EB{E
NEEREL - AARIERZES
FEEEH ALai Guanglindt 4
JRAAgria CorporationiZ A% 58 o

BER-_Z—N\F_A-_+=HH
THREERRS FRANRE
= KEENCVILREE S MAGL
(Agria Corporation®) & &M B
A M CVILB BB A R]) A &R
£EMCVILKEFX10,000,000E 7T
(}857478,357,000870) * HAbIF
A5 T o

RZZE—NAFRANA  AEEE
AGLET M. Bt ([2019E 5%
#FD O UEHERMFE LR @
—E-NEFENA—REZZ-_—F
tA=+—H1k-

E=E-NF+=—A=+—H "
—EZEF+A=+—RH0- =
T —F+ - /B=+—HItHEE
ErEE-_ZT-_—_F+A=+—H
I SEFE  HRZES
REEERASHEFTELRHA
10,000,000 7T °
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30. BEALRS @
FRERE ()
BT —[EEZE L7 ()

30. Related party transactions (Continued)
Year end balances (Continued)

(d) Loan to a related company (Continued) (d)

The annual caps of the interest amounts for the
financial years ended/ending 31 December 2019,
31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and period
ending 31 July 2022 were US$441,000, US$1,053,000,
US$1,050,000 and US$610,000 respectively (“Annual
Caps”). The 2019 Loan Agreement, Annual Caps of the
principal loan outstanding and interest amounts were
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
Company's special general meeting on 24 June 2019.

Under the 2019 Loan Agreement, the clause of the
share mortgage executed by AGL, being the sole
shareholder of CVIL, over the entire issued shares of
CVIL in favour of the Group has been removed. Save
as the above amendments, all other terms of the 2019
Loan Agreement remain unchanged and continue in full
force and effect.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the interest
income from AGL amounted to approximately
US$1,050,000 (equivalent to HK$8,254,000) (2018:
US$1,050,000 (equivalent to HK$8,252,000)).

As at 31 December 2019, the loan to AGL amounted
to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,229,000)
(31 December 2018: US$10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$78,540,000)).

Bz hhFE+=-A=+—8"
—EZEF+A=+—RH- =
T —F+ - /F=+—HItHEE
ErEE-_ZT-_—_F+A=+—H
LHHR  FIB2BEFERELERDRIA
441,000% 7T * 1,053,000% ¢
1,050,000 7T %.610,0003 7T ([ £
BER]D - ARRBREER=-F
—NFERNAZTEBERITHRES
BIRE FHE2019E K% &
PAESERNB LB FELR -

BIF2019E %% - UAEE A
Z@m A BAGLOBCVILAYME—RR
R)BMCVILM B BITRMD &
KR AR B R A GG E MBR -
B EaERTON - 2019E R
FrE E MR T8 R EE A 1
RN RAER °

HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—81
FE - AGLFTBMF B AL B
1,050,000 7T (4855 728,254,000
#BIt) (ZZ—/\%F : 1,050,000
7T (FEE78,252,0008 7)) °

R—ZB—-—NF+=_A=+—8"
ERTAGLHIEEE/410,000,0003
7T (BZ574 78,229,000/ T (=&
—N\F+=A=+—H : 10,000,000
%7t (#8%1478,540,000587T)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

31. Statement of financial position and reserve
movement of the Company

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments and other receivables

Tax recoverable

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

&E

FRBEE

M - BB KRR
iSETNEPNCIE &=

REBEE

TE {75 B A AR
AU IR

& AT PfS I X A IR

B RIRTTHE

HEE

e
RERHAA
Hﬁ

1
o

a8\

REBAE

HAb SRR
eS8 R 0R
HEE
HEENEE

Total assets less current liabilities A& ERABEE

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and

was signed on its behalf:

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Lai Fulin 8@ /8

Director&8 %

BHEBRAERDE

31. ARAMBRAKRR FHELEB

As at 31 December

R+t=—A=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\E
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
HraE FET TIETT
52 81
90,440 90,435
90,492 90,516
494 486
2,873 2,103
39,781 39,791
1,332 2,046
44,480 44,426
134,972 134,942
26,665 26,665
(i) 99,626 102,567
126,291 129,232
1,089 2,166
7,592 3,544
8,681 5,710
134,972 134,942
35,799 38,716
126,291 129,232

ARANMBEARNRERAEZTEN -F
“ERFE=RA T LAt URKESF

BRE

Yu Ben Ansheng BI %4

Director2%#
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31. Statement of financial position and reserve

Note:

(.

)

31.

e MR R MR

RABMBRARR FELE

movement of the Company (Continued) (&)
Reserve movement of the Company PN o
Contributed  Share-based
Share surplus payment  Accumulated
premium (note) reserve deficits Total
R
AEBY
RARE DEAT] bR &
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FEL FEr FET
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\5-F-A 126,618 86,759 5,252 (111,020) 107,609
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - (5,071) (5,071)
Share-based payment IR BETEER - - 29 - 29
Transfer upon lapse of share options el P REE - - (925) 925 =
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZ-\F+ZA=+-H
k=Z-NE—R—H 126,618 86,759 4,356 (115,166) 102,567
Loss for the year REEEE - - - (2,946) (2,946)
Share-based payment AR BETEE R - - 5 = 5
Transfer upon lapse of share options e TRy - - (4,012) 4,012 -
At 31 December 2019 R=Z2-n%+=A=t+-A 126,618 86,759 349 (114,100) 99,626
Note: Wt

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. and the value of net assets of
the underlying subsidiaries acquired by the Company in 2000.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders, subject
to a solvency test. At the Group level, the contributed surplus
is reclassified into its component of reserves of the underlying
subsidiaries.

KRB ZEANRBERTIHERR B BRI
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. 2
BTEBRMEIT 2RO EEREARAF
KB EBNE AR _ETTF
BEFEWNERACZZHE BREARE
—NN—FREEGIER]) - AR
EREERENEREBER IR ZBER
T AEDIRTRE - EASEZRE
o BABBRETHEAEENBAR
2 EERERE D -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of each director and the chief
executive for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2019 is set out below:

32. EEMAENER (REFE(D

BIRBI) (55622F) 5E3831% K
(RRIBRBESNEER) RO
(56622GE) R ERB(LWHRA)
B9 TE M E H i BR)

(a) EBERTHRARNE

SEFRABBENRE T\
ER-E-NE+-A=+—H1
FEOMeHRIET

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZ2-NEroAzT-RLER

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services asa director, whether o the Company orts subsidary undertaking

fees Salary

Name of Directors Esitf (ki it

S0 S0

Tir T

Lai Fulin e - 75

Yu Ben Ansheng (note (ii) A ) - 100

Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson ik 0 -
Chen Wei Wen REx 150
Guan Zhigiang i 0

550 538

Discretionary

honuses

i
00

63

[rAES(RaRAL S ANELTLR RERITR N9RAHHE

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director's

other service

in connection

Remunerations  with the

fstimated ~ Employer's paidor  management
monetary  contrbutions ~ receivablein  of the affars
value 0a  respectof of the
ofother refirement  accepting  Company or
Housing ~ benefits benefit ~officeas  its subsidiary

dlowance  (rore) stheme director  undertaking Total
HEERNT
FEHENT
RS DRNER
HBAN B REES RisgEs
fHEmEE  ENBH  -RERN REARN
REER (i) RECHR AEGOEE  dRYGES L]

HSOD HSOD HSOD HSOW HSOW KW

T Tt 7B TEn TEn TEx
Ll 18 = = 353

140 18 - - 285

- s 0

150

0

280 3 6873

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ®EHEIRERAF
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32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 32. EENANEMER (BREFB(D

required by section 383 of the Hong Kong AHRH) (5622F) 383K Kk

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies (AR BEESHRER) RE)

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits (6622GE) REEB(LWHRAD

of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK WREMELNEE) @

Listing Rules) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EBRTHARHE &)
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\EtoA=t-ALER
Emoluments pid or receveble n respect o  perso'ssenicesas a director, whether of the Company or s subsidary undertaing
[eRES(FARIAREENBLRLS RERAR A RRe
Emoluments
paid or
receiable
nrespect
of drector’s
other senice
in comnection
Remuneraions —~ withthe
Esimated ~~ Employer's pador  management
monetary  contbutons receivablein  of theaffas
Vlue foa  respectof ofthe
ofother — refiement  accepting  Company or
Discrefionary Housing tenefs benefit — officeas it subsidary
fees Sdary bonuses— dlowance (o) scheme drector — undertaing Totdl
HEEADA
L
AEA DNER
£ RitEpEs
SO i

Heafn
GHEREE B -

Name ofDiector i) g FoOWERL  RER  dEm)  REZE dmboEe dmue 2
S 1 Hsom s S0 S0 S0 wow - Hsow

g Hr Hr o T T o Hr

Lai Guangfin (note () Lai Guangin (53() = 83 = = 30 = = s 125
Lai Fulin e - 207 1103 - 10 18 - - 3668
Yu Ben Ansheng (note (i) AR () - 2561 I8 - 14 18 S S 318
U Kean Seng (note (i) REA ) I = = = = = = = i
Waong Yee Shuen, Wilson iz m = s s s s s S 0
Chen Wei Wen REX 150 - - - - = = = 150
Guan Zhigiang i ] - - - - - - = 0
5% 5831 1,566 42 % 8673
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e M RRME

32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

()  Mr. Lai Guanglin resigned as executive director and
Chairman of the Company on 30 March 2018.

(i) Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

(i) Mr. U Keng Seng resigned as non-executive director of
the Company on 30 March 2018.

(iv)  Other benefits include share option and other allowance.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ®EHEIRERAF

32. EEMAENER (REFE(D
RIRGI) (3£622F) 3831 K
(RRIBRBESNEER) RO
(%6622GE) R EB(LHARA
HYRE ML VK E) @)

(a) EERITHRARME @

MEE

(i) Lai GuanglineERZT—NF=
A=Z+HBEARAPITERER
FEB -

s

(ii) ZHEEERARBNERRT

m} I

(i) RERELER-_Z—NE=A
Zt+HBETARNARIERTE
$o

vy EtEMNemEkEREdm2
B o
(b) ESEHRAKER
FA - HEERWEERYCRRTE
MZE—NEF: 8 -
() ESHKLER
FA - BESFWRNRERELE
FRBEMN(CE—N\F | -
(d) REHESEBEMEAE=S]E
HEHE

RZBE-NF+_A=+—HFE
RN ARRWRELENESR
BMENE=ZTHHEECZE—N
F | o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures

required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such directors (2018:
Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 30, there are no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2018: Nil).

33. Business Combination

On 1 August 2018, the Group acquired a 66.7% interest
in & M E T REJR B BR A Fl(Guizhou Zhongguan New
Energy Limited*) (“Zhongguan New Energy”) at an
aggregate consideration of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
HK$11,553,000) by way of capital injection. Zhongguan New
Energy is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of biomass pellet fuel products in Mainland China.

The acquired business contributed revenue of approximately
HK$2.2 million and net loss of approximately HK$3.5
million to the Group for the period from 1 August 2018 to
31 December 2018. If the acquisition had occurred on the
1 January 2018, there will be no material impact on the
Group's consolidated revenue and profit for the year ended
31 December 2018.

* For identification purpose only
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32. EEMNENER (RIEFE(D

BB (36622F) 383K K
(RRIBRBESREER) RH)
(56622GE) R ERB(LWHRA)
HYRE ML VK EE) @)

() MESE XZRFEBEFAE
ABBRZESNEEIRRE
HNEXR EERMNEMKZ S
HER

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—HEFE
N EAES  XRFEFE
B EBREEERATBAZE
K EEFRHEMRS (ZF-N
FE) e

(f) EZHEXS ZHHERNE
KR

BRMIGE30PTIREEE SN - WEMARA
RAERBMARBMEREF—F R
ARRBEREF (TREZKE
B)BEEAED MAFFREIRN
FREMBR)NEARS «
RERCE-N\F : &) -

33. ¥E6t

R-ZZE—N\FNA—H  KEELAR
B AR%10,000,000(%1&11,553,000
B ZHEEEE WEBEMNPEIEER
BRAR([HEHEEIR]) 266.7 %%
o MEHEREZRF BRI EE
EREEEYE BRI ERM °

H-ZE-N\FNA-—HBE-T-)/\F
TZA=1t—8 RUEBEHR/AEE
BRI A 472,200,000/ 7T & BB F
#49733,500,000/8 7T ° 5 BN =
T \F-A-R%EL  BTEEHAE
BEE_Z-N\F+_A=t—HB1LH
HABARRMNBEATE -
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SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

33. Business Combination (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Zhongguan New Energy acquired as at the date of acquisition

is as follows:

Fair value of identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed:

Property, plant and equipment

Inventory

Prepayment and other receivables

Amount due from non-controlling shareholder
Cash

Deposits and other payables

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets
Non-controlling interests

Net assets acquired

Satisfied by:
Cash injection

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid
Cash acquired

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

33. ¥¥a0t@m)
RS B HANEE 2 R a #rae Rk Rl B =
FEBEZAREBENT
WEBREERREARE HK$°000
BARE : FEIT
e N L 7,336
FE 357
TR FRIE & oAb FE UG R IR 5,219
JEULIE T2 IR A% 3R 5k 1E 4,727
B& 898
e R HALER IR (772)
BERIBAE (435)
BEFE 17,330
Bl (5,777)
BAEEFE 11,553
LATRFI AR
REFE 11,553
WIESRB 2 FRER ¢
BENEERE 11,553
BUREEIR & (898)
10,655

Acquisition-related costs involved are insignificant to the
Group, and had been included in administrative expenses of

the Group for the year end of 31 December 2018.

BHEBRAERDE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries

35.

Name

£

Incorporated and operating in
Hong Kong

EEBRIREE

Bun Kee (International) Limited

Wad (BIR) BR AR

Hamerwind Logistic Company Limited
EEMTBRAT

Established and operating in Macao

tRFIAVRAE

Bun Kee Building Material and
Equipment (Macao) Co., Ltd.
et ke (R ERAR

Established and operating in the PRC
ERERLREE

Guizhou Zhongguan New Energy
Limited*(note)

EMEHERERAR (i)

Note:

The entity is established as a limited liability equity joint venture in

the PRC.

Subsequent event

Principal Activities

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings in
Hong Kong

REANERENH
(TEREEREN) 285

Provision of warehousing and logistic
services in Hong Kong

REBRERT RRRE

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings in Macao

REPRERENH (T RREE
REH) 285

Manufacture and sale of biomass
pellet fuel products in the PRC
RAAEERHEE MR

Em

e MR R MR

34. TEMBLATER

Percentage
ARl

Particulars of issued and fully paid Attributable Held by
share capital/registered capital to the Group subsidiaries
BRTRARRA/ ZHEX REEER WEAREE
100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100 100

and 3,000,000 non-voting deferred

shares of HK$ 1 each
100REREEIAT L SRRR

3,000 000R B REE1ETL

ERZEETRY
800 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 100 100
800 EREE 00T LBk
MOP50,000 100 100
50,0002 %
RMB15,000,000 66.67 66.67
A& 15,000,000

EENPFERINEREETRERE -

35.

There is an outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19) in
early 2020 throughout the world. The Group expects the
economy in Hong Kong, Macao and the PRC to be negatively
impacted and this may potentially affect the Group’s business
and financial performance in 2020. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the epidemic and evaluate

its impact on the financial position and operating results.

For identification purpose only

HERER

ZEZZEFY O FAEABEHRRS
(COVID-19)fEE Bk B %S - KREBETEHRE
B RFIRFEMNEESZIE®EY
2 WHURHASE - S -_TFHNE
BRUBRREEEENTE - A£E
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ARANAL B A2 o
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T FEHEHE

Results

Revenue

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—FF —T—RF —B—+F —T-)N\F ZE-hEF
4 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
WA 611,534 619,203 650,461 538,155 531,371
A 39,585 57,860 84,174 29,472 5,874
FIES (5,562) (7,297) (9,386) (4,621) (1,444)
RE i A 34,023 50,563 74,788 24,851 4,430
BN
KREERFE A 34,023 50,572 74,945 26,015 6,790
FEPE AR A - (9) (157) (1,164) (2,360)
34,023 50,563 74,788 24,851 4,430
BEREE
B E 531,414 598,173 671,953 672,880 795,370
wafk (146,288)  (161,905)  (159,911)  (131,447)  (249,334)
BRETE 385,126 436,268 512,042 541,433 546,036
BHEKRAERLD T
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